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Chairman’s Statement 3 i # 3

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”),
I present the annual report of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company”) and its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended

31 December 2014.
[

FINANCIAL RESULTS
For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recorded

consolidated loss attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$24 million.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend
the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS,
REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND FUTURE
PROSPECTS

During the year, the Group continued to engage in property related
businesses and provision of horticultural services and securities
trading business. The Group's turnover of the year was mainly
derived from horticultural services. No sale of properties was
transacted in the year.

The Group recorded loss for the year of approximately HK$24
million. The decrease in net loss was mainly due to increase in
income and no equity-settled share-based transaction recognised
in 2014.
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Chairman’s Statement 3 i $#t 3

The Company remains confident in the Hong Kong property
market, the prestigious location and the superior quality of the

Group's development properties.

The net asset value of the Company per share as at 31 December
2014 was approximately HK$0.11 (2013: HK$0.12) based on the
2,635,802,084 (2013: 2,631,652,084) shares issued.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 35 employees.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

All the Group's funding and treasury activities are centrally
managed and controlled at the corporate level. There is no
significant change in respect of treasury and financing policies from
the information disclosed in the Company's latest annual report.
The Group’s monetary assets and liabilities are denominated and
the Group conducts its business transactions principally in Hong
Kong dollars. The exchange rate risk of the Group is not considered
significant, no financial instruments for hedging purpose are

employed.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, there was no outstanding bank
loan. The Group's working capital requirements are funded by bank

deposits.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

| take this opportunity to express my gratitude to my colleagues
on the Board and the staff members of the Group for their strong

support and valuable contribution.

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick

Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director

Hong Kong, 27 February 2015
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #F ~ZFE—4FEAf —H =+—H IFF&E

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to raising the standard of corporate
governance within the Group in order to enhance the transparency
in disclosure of material information. The Group has complied
with the code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code (the
"CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the "“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the year
except the deviations stated in the following paragraphs.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions as set out in the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following specific
enquiry by the Company, all directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

CoMPOSITION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2014, the Board comprises three executive
directors and three independent non-executive directors, who
have appropriate corporate experience. The composition of the
Board during the year ended 31 December 2014 was as follows:

Executive directors
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
(Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director)
Cheong Sim Eng (Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director)
Cheong Hooi Kheng

Independent non-executive directors
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

Kwik Sam Aik

Details of the directors’ qualifications, directorships and other
particulars are set out on pages 30 to 31.

Among the members of the Board, Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan,
Patrick and Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng
are brothers and sister. Save as disclosed herein, to the best
knowledge of the Company, there is no other financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships among the
members of the Board.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

FuncTions oF THE BoARD

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs
of the Company and the Group. Apart from its statutory duties,
the Board reviews and approves the Company’s and the Group’s
strategic plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and
funding decisions, annual business plans, reviews the financial
performance of the Company and the Group and evaluates the
performance and compensation of senior management personnel.

Guidelines are established which specify certain material
transactions that require the Board’s approval which include
mergers and acquisitions, divestments and major capital
expenditure.

The Board has separate and independent access to management
and the company secretary. Management provides the Board with
reports of the Company’s and the Group's performance, financial
position and prospects, and these are reviewed by the Board at
Board meeting. Directors may obtain independent professional
advice in furtherance of their duties at the Company’s and the
Group's expense.

BoarRD MEETINGS

The Board holds meetings on a regular basis during the year to
review the Company’s and the Group’s operations and financial
results. During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Board held
twelve meetings. Details of attendance of the directors at the
Board meetings are as follows:
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Attendance at Board meetings

EEggRLERE

Executive directors HITEE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $EH 82

(Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director) (B F 3 e 2 FATACHE) 12/12
Cheong Sim Eng fEpatd

(Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director) (B & £ JE 77 0 o 2 B AGASIE) 8/12
Cheong Hooi Kheng EE 8/12
Independent non-executive directors BUHHITESE
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert fR LA 10/12
Leung Wing Ning oK EE 10/12
Kwik Sam Aik M=% 8/12
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

GENERAL MEETING

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company
convened one general meeting. Details of attendance of the
directors at the general meeting are as follows:
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Attendance at general meeting

BRERAGHERE

Executive directors PITEE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick $E N 2

(Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director) (B fE 3 [ 2 FAGATIE) 11
Cheong Sim Eng fEpat s

(Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director) (B3 [ [ FATACIE) on
Cheong Hooi Kheng g 0N
Independent non-executive directors BUHHITESE
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert FR LA 11
Leung Wing Ning R E 11
Kwik Sam Aik B='a 11

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
there are three independent non-executive directors representing
at least one-third of the Board. Among the three independent non-
executive directors, one of them has appropriate professional
qualifications in accounting or relevant financial management
expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has entered into
an appointment letter with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2018.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive
director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all of
them to be independent.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

DirReCTORS’ TRAINING

The code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code provides that all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the directors of the Company.

The Company had provided to all directors with the “A Guide
on Directors’ Duties” issued by the Companies Registry. The
directors had noted and studied the above mentioned document.
For the year ended 31 December 2014, Messrs. Chan Yee Hoi,
Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik Sam Aik had also attended
several forums and training seminars held by professional
organizations. The Company had received from each of the
directors of the Company the confirmations on taking continuous
professional training.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
The code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides that the roles

of chairman and chief executive (“CE") should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Cheong
Pin Chuan, Patrick and Mr. Cheong Sim Eng are both the joint
chairman of the Board as well as the Group's joint CE/managing
director. Given the size and that the Company’s and the Group's
current business operations and administration have been
relatively stable and straightforward, the Board is satisfied that the
current structure is able to effectively discharge the duties of both
positions. However, going forward, the Board will review from
time to time the need to separate the roles of the chairman and
the CE if the situation warrants it.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Employees (including directors) are remunerated according
to their performance and working experience as well as
the prevailing market conditions. On top of basic salaries,
discretionary bonus and share options may by granted to eligible
employee by reference to the individual's performance. In
addition, the Group also provides social security benefits to its
staff such as mandatory provident fund scheme in Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Company's corporate governance functions are carried out
by the Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference
adopted by the Board in compliance with code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the
Company’s policies and practices on corporate governance and
make recommendations to the Board; (b) to review and monitor
the training and continuous professional development of the
directors and senior management of the Company; (c) to review
and monitor the Company's policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review
and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and the directors of the Company; and
(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.

For the year ended 31 December 2014 and as at the date of
this report, the Board had reviewed the corporate governance
matters of the Company. Saved for the deviation disclosed under
the “Chairman and Chief Executive” section, the Company had
complied with the principles and applicable code provisions of the
CG Code and was not aware of any non-compliance to relevant
applicable legal and regulatory requirements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
(CONTINUED)

AupiT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference. The primary
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment and removal
of external auditor, review the financial statements and material
advice in respect of financial reporting, and overseeing the
internal control procedures of the Company. At present, the Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Messrs. Chan Yee
Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik Sam Aik, all of whom are
independent non-executive directors. Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert
currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

BOARD COMMITTEES

AupiT COMMITTEE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to make recommendation on the appointment of
external auditor, review financial statements, financial reporting
system and internal control procedures of the Company. Details of
attendance of each Audit Committee member at the meetings are
as follows:
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Attendance at Audit
Committee meetings

EREEETRHERHY

Names of the Audit Committee members EREEERERSR
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RR LA

(Chairman of the Committee) (ZEEEE) 2/2
Leung Wing Ning 25K 5 2/2
Kwik Sam Aik B=ra 2/2
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) with written terms of reference.
The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
are to review and make recommendations to the Board on the
overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all directors
and senior management of the Company. At present, the
Remuneration Committee consists of three members, comprising
two independent non-executive directors, Mr. Leung Wing Ning
and Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, and one executive director, Mr.
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick. Mr. Leung Wing Ning currently serves
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Remuneration
Committee held five meetings to review and make recommendation
on the remuneration policy and structure relating to all directors and
senior management of the Company. Details of attendance of each
Remuneration Committee member at the meeting are as follows:
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Attendance at Remuneration
Committee meeting

FHEESE SR HERH

Names of the Remuneration SNEESRERR

Committee members
Leung Wing Ning oK E

(Chairman of the Committee) (ZE8FF) 5/5
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert fR LAE 5/5
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick §E X 2 5/5

The remuneration of directors is determined with reference
to their performance and working experience as well as the
prevailing market conditions. Details of emoluments of directors
for the year ended 31 December 2014 are set out in note 8 to the
financial statements. The emoluments paid to senior management
for the year ended 31 December 2014 falls within the following
bands:
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Number of senior management

BREEABAH
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £% 1,000,000 % 7T -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 8 7L % 2,000,0008 7T -
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 # 7T % 3,000,000 % 7T
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001 E7TE 4,000,000/8 7T 2
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BOARD COMMITTEES (CONTINUED)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a nomination committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) with written terms of reference.
The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee are
to review the structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board the suitable candidates for directorship after consideration
of the nominees’ independence and quality in order to ensure
fairness and transparency of all nominations. At present, the
Nomination Committee consists of three members, comprising
two independent non-executive directors, Mr. Kwik Sam Aik and
Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, and one executive director, Mr. Cheong
Pin Chuan, Patrick. Mr. Kwik Sam Aik currently serves as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board. Details of attendance of each
Nomination Committee member at the meetings are as follows:
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Attendance at Nomination
Committee meetings

REZESERHERE

Names of the Nomination REZEEREHSE

Committee members
Kwik Sam Aik 2P=%

(Chairman of the Committee) (ZEEEE) 2/2
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert P Nis] 2/2
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick R 2/2

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December 2014,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group at the date and of the Group's results and cash
flows for the year then ended and are properly prepared on the going
concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
accounting standards. The directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #F ~ZFE—4FEAf —H =+—H IFF&E

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
The statement of the auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Company is set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 33 to 35.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the auditor of the
Company and its subsidiaries would receive approximately
HK$440,000 (2013: HK$440,000) for audit and audit related
services, HK$Nil (2013: HK$Nil) for tax services and HK$60,000
(2013: HK$60,000) for other services.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company’s system of
internal control.

To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency of operations and
to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations, the
Group emphasises on the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk
exposure. The Group’s system of internal control is designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.

The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and identification of business risks. The Board is satisfied that,
based on information furnished to it and on its own observations,
the present internal controls of the Group are satisfactory.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and
management of risks associated with its business activities and
has implemented a practical and effective control system which
includes a defined management structure with limits of authority,
a sound cash management system and periodic review of the
Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Board.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 # % - F—J4E1 - H =+—H IFF ¥

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

The Board has conducted review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control and is of the view that the system
of internal control adopted for the year ended 31 December
2014 is sound and is effective to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets.

COMPANY SECRETARY
For the year ended 31 December 2014, Ms. Ho Wing Yan was the

company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”).
Ms. Ho took no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

CONVENING A SPECIAL GENERAL MEETING

Pursuant to bye-law 58 of the Company’s bye-laws, any one or
more members of the Company holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure
of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the principal office of the Company in Hong
Kong at Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong by post
for the attention of the Company Secretary.
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Year ended 31 December 2014 #F ~ZFE—4FEAf —H =+—H IFF&E

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

To foster effective communications, the Company provided all
necessary information to the shareholders in its annual report and
interim report. The Directors or other appropriate members of
senior management of the Company will also respond to inquiries
from shareholders and investors promptly.

For the year ended 31 December 2014, there has been no
significant change in the Company’s constitutional documents.

PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING
Shareholder(s), at his/their own expense, holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of requisition the right to vote at general meeting;
or (ii) not less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written
request stating the resolution intended to be moved at the next
annual general meeting. The requisition signed by the relevant
shareholder(s) must be deposited at the registered office at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
and at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
3201, 9 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong for the attention of
the Company Secretary not less than six weeks before the annual
general meeting in the case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution and not less than seven days before the annual general
meeting in the case of any other requisition. The request will be
verified with the branch share registrar of the Company and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in
the notice for such general meeting.

As mentioned in the above section headed “Convening a Special
General Meeting”, shareholder(s) can make a requisition to
convene a special general meeting and move forward a resolution
thereat. The requisition signed by the relevant shareholder(s)
must be deposited at the registered office at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Company Secretary no
later than seven days prior to the date of special general meeting.
Only when the request has been verified with the branch share
registrar to be proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask
the Board to include the resolution in the notice for such general
meeting.
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The directors herein present their annual report together with the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company consists of investment
holding. Details of the principal activities of the principal

subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014 and the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages
36 to 127.

DIVIDENDS

No interim dividend was paid and the directors do not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out below.
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RESULTS *48

Year ended 31 December
BET-A=t-HLEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
2l —T-=F ZB-ZF —“T—% —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAET FAET FAET FAET

Turnover e 5,351 4,880 4,629 46,721 376,498
Loss before taxation PREERIE S (24,043) (37,144) (28,611) (22,825) (19,496)
Income tax expense FERAY - - - - -
Loss for the year AEEEAR (24,043) (37,144) (28,611) (22,825) (19,496)
Attributable to: el
Equity shareholders of KARERFEA

the Company (24,043)  (37,144) (28,611) (22,825) (19,496)
Non-controlling interests RS - - - - -

(24,043) (37,144) (28,611) (22,825) (19,496)

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS W~ A R Ik B hE AR

As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NF —T-=fF T —Z——F —Z-ZF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET TET TAT AT TET

Total assets BEE 299,861 332,001 360,137 397,048 753,688
Total liabilities gaiE (9,415) (19,147) (20,724) (25,394)  (361,409)

290,446 312,854 339,413 371,654 392,279

Equity attributable to equity AREESRBA
shareholders of the Company [E(hER 290,446 312,854 339,413 371,654 392,279
Non-controlling interests SRS - _ _ _ _

290,446 312,854 339,413 371,654 392,279
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FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group are set out
in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year, together with the reasons therefor, are set out in note 23 to

the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing

shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 23 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2014, the Company's reserves available for
distribution calculated in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) amounted to
approximately HK$109,516,000 (2013: HK$111,732,000).

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions totalling
approximately HK$200,000 (2013: HK$100,000).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for 45% (2013: 38%) of the total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 25% (2013: 14%).

Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted
for 75% (2013: 54%) of the total purchases for the year and
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
23% (2013: 13%).

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their close
associates, nor those shareholders which to the knowledge of the
directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital had

any interest in the five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors who held office during the year and up to the date of

this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick

(Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director)
Cheong Sim Eng

(Joint Chairman and Joint Managing Director)

Cheong Hooi Kheng

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert

Leung Wing Ning

Kwik Sam Aik

In accordance with bye law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr.
Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng will retire. Mr.
Cheong Sim Eng and Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election as executive directors at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS W ZIRB A&
No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual ERREET I RRBEASERET Y

general meeting has a service contract with the Company which EEVEEARGR L TAHARBR—F
is not determinable by the Company within one year without NEF I EE CXEREERIN) ML 2R

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation. BEH -

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS w2 AR

At 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of RZZ—NF+_RA=+—H ZEFREZE
directors and chief executive in shares, underlying shares and TBRABRARRZRMD - HBEKRG RES

debentures of the Company as required to be disclosed under FEEREESFLPEGRN(TEFLRE
and within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures GBI % XV M2 MEBETHE 2w %
Ordinance (the “SFO") were as follows:— BT —

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES JAA 2 v BBy KoM B B By Z 35 AT —
OF THE COMPANY:—

Nature of Number and class
interest of shares held Percentage
Name of directors EEnE ERtE FrsR D88 R Bakk
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick E e Interest of spouse 3,736,700 ordinary 0.14%
fl B shares (Note)
3,736,700 f%
T (P aT)
Beneficial owner 26,000,000 0.98%
EREBA share options
26,000,000 17
FElE
Cheong Sim Eng SEALLE Beneficial owner 26,000,000 0.98%
EnEEA share options
26,000,000 13
Rl
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEW Beneficial owner 2,200,000 0.08%
EnBEEA Ordinary shares
2,200,000 %
Beneficial owner 26,000,000 0.98%
EnEEA share options
26,000,000 13
Rl
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

OF THE COMPANY:— (CONTINUED)

o ()
A2 W IRy B KR By 2 95 A < — (1)

Nature of Number and class
interest of shares held Percentage
Name of directors EEME ERtE FERHEE RER Btk
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert BRLAE Beneficial owner 700,000 0.02%
EmBEBA share options
700,000 17
Ehirie
Leung Wing Ning K= Beneficial owner 700,000 0.02%
EXHEBA share options
700,000 1%
BEhriE
Kwik Sam Aik B=G Beneficial owner 700,000 0.02%
EmBEBA share options
700,000 17
e
Note: B 5

Madam Helen Zee Yee Ling, the spouse of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, was
interested in 3,736,700 shares, and as a result, Mr. Cheong is deemed to be
interested in these shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company were, under
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, taken to be interested
or deemed to have any other interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company, that
were required to be entered into the register kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or were required to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has two share option schemes which were adopted
on 15 April 2002 (“share option scheme 2002") and 25 June 2013
(“share option scheme 2013") for the purposes of enabling the
Group to provide incentives or rewards to eligible participants
for their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the
interests of the Group and to enable the Group to recruit and/or
to retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources that

are valuable to the Group.

The directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to
invite eligible participants, including the directors or any employee
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or an affiliate, and any
consultant, agent, or advisor of the Group or an affiliate, to take up

options to subscribe for shares of the Company.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
share option schemes at any time during a period as determined
by the directors of the Company and not exceeding ten years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for which
an option must be held before it can be exercised. The offer of a
grant of share options may be accepted within twenty-one days
from the date of offer upon an initial payment of HK$1 in total for
each acceptance. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less than

whichever is the highest of:

(@) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets on the date of the grant,
which must be a business day;

(b)  the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five trading days

immediately preceding the date of the grant; and

(c)  the nominal value of a share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2002

There is no ordinary share available for issue under the share
option scheme 2002 as at the date of this report. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which share options may be
granted to any one participant in any twelve-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue from time to

time.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, there is no options
outstanding, granted, exercised, cancelled and lapsed. The share

option scheme 2002 expired on 15 April 2012.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2013

There are 183,300,000 ordinary shares available for issue under
the share option scheme 2013 representing approximately 6.95%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report. The maximum number of shares in respect of which share
options may be granted to any one participant in any twelve-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue

from time to time.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, a total of 950,000
share options have lapsed and 4,150,000 share options have
been exercised under the share option scheme 2013, while none
of such share options had been granted, nor cancelled. As at 31
December 2014, 183,300,000 share options entitling the holders
of which to subscribe for the Company's ordinary shares were

outstanding.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) i S hE 3 (4
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 2013 (CONTINUED) TR AR B ()
MOVEMENTS OF SHARE OPTIONS DURING THE YEAR AR JEE Vil B A 58 Y
Number of share options
BlEsA
Exercise Outstanding Outstanding
Price asat Granted Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled asat
List of per share 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantees Date of Grant of options 2014 the year the year the year the year 2014
RZE-R|E R-E2-pF
BflERE -p-A KEE AEE AEE REE  TZR=T-H
REAZE RiLAS fhgia HA{TR il BT BAH BH# RRATHE
HKS
#7
Directors EZ
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick 18 December 2013 0.1168 26,000,000 - - - - 26,000,000
Eilg ZE-ETZRT\R
Cheong Sim Eng 18 December 2013 0.1168 26,000,000 - - - - 26,000,000
g ZE-ZEFZAT\R
Cheong Hooi Kheng 18 December 2013 0.1168 26,000,000 - - - - 26,000,000
2P ZE-ETZRT\R
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert 18 December 2013 0.1168 700,000 - - - - 700,000
BRENE “E-ZEtAT\R
Leung Wing Ning 18 December 2013 0.1168 700,000 - - - - 700,000
RKE ZE-ZEFZAT\R
Kwik Sam Aik 18 December 2013 0.1168 700,000 - - - - 700,000
3= “E-ZEtAT\R
Subtotal 80,100,000 - - - - 80,100,000
Pt
Eligible employees
SEKES
In aggregate 18 December 2013 0.1168 108,300,000 - (4,750,000) (950,000) - 103,200,000
At ZE-ZETZAT\R
Total 188,400,000 - (4,150,000) (950,000) - 183,300,000
Eh)

M- BhEZNEEYE —F2—=+_-A+/\Q
E-E-=F+-ATERATE - ZERER
R BRRE MR ME22 -

Note — The share options are vested immediately and exercisable from 18 December
2013 to 17 December 2023. Further details of these options are set out in
note 22 to the financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Apart from as disclosed under the sections headed “Directors’
interests” and “Share option scheme"” above, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouse or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements, there
were no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted at the end of year or at any time
during the year.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in this report, no contract of significance has
been entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries
and the controlling shareholders of the Company or any of
their subsidiaries, at any time during the year. No contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of
its subsidiaries by the controlling shareholders of the Company or
any of their subsidiaries.

o A JBe Ay Z B

%X [ %2 ] R [ B mEntE
2z BES - AR TRETAMBRARE
FELMSRIMRYE HSFARAES -
REEEZRBRFHFB T \RZT LA
NN B SO E SR INL L P So
B35 M 1§ 35 -

WA R Z A

BB B RAM 27 FTRER B S - BEMAT IR
FHRXFRETHREY - AR FRIE
HBARATH REREMEBEA - A
AAREFHEEAERZEM -

S BB A Z 45

BRAREMMEES - AR B S E KB
REEARRHEEFMNE R R ZERBER
ZEABERNAFREEAFBEILENERS
%) o BEEA DR SR A E QR Z R
REARRHEEERMERRREREHE

BHEA -
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING W2 W

BUSINESS

At 31 December 2014, interests of directors in competing RZZE—NFF+ZA=+—H  EFREX
.
a<

business of the Group were as follows:

BEKEF C XGTHEA 2 EST

Name of Nature of
Name of directors company competing business Nature of interest
Y NERER BEEBME BitE
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Hong Fok Property development and As a director and shareholder
B Corporation construction, property

Cheong Sim Eng

Cheong Hooi Kheng
EE

Limited (“"HFC")  management, investment trading
BREXBRAT MEREREE  WEEE REEE REERRE
(IBREED

Hong Fok Land Property management, trading As a director and the
International of securities spouse of a shareholder
Limited (“HFL")

Hong Fok Land ~ #¥%EI1E - B5EE RESRBRF RS
International

Limited ([HFLJ)

HFC Property development and As a director and shareholder
construction, property
management, investment trading

BRREXE MEBRREE MEEE REEE REFRIRE
HFL Property management, trading As a director
of securities
HFL MEER  BHEE RES
HFC Property development and As a director and shareholder

construction, property
management, investment trading

BRREX MEBRRKEE NEER REEE REENKRR

HFL Property management, trading As a shareholder
of securities

HFL WEER  EHEE RIRR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

At 31

December 2014, the following persons (not being directors

or chief executive of the Company) had an interest in the following

long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company

as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336

FBBH B I L Z A2

R-F—MFE+_A=+—8 T AL
(ARREBRHEETHRABRIN ZRALR
ARIRRE 75 M HA B 16R 5) 56 336 1R 2 M TE FT T
B ZEBRMATCER AR R Z By MR A

of the SFO. Mz ErHEEER -
Capacity Number of shares held Percentage
Name of shareholder REEE #E FriERnEE ARl
HFC BRE! Held by controlled corporation 1,662,910,365 62.71%
BB ERRE (Note 1)
(FzE1)
First Strategy Investments Limited ~ First Strategy Investments Limited Beneficial owner 628,746,775 23.85%
ERAAA
HFL HFL Held by controlled corporation 628,746,775 23.85%
BB ERRE (Note 2)
(Fzx2)
Barragan Trading Corp. Barragan Trading Corp. Beneficial owner 285,312,566 10.82%
ERAAA
Praise Time Co Limited Praise Time Co Limited Beneficial owner 162,000,000 6.15%
ERAAA

Notes:

Save

HFC was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiaries, Hong Fok Corporation (Cayman) Limited (“HFC Cayman") and
Hong Fok Corporation (H.K.) Limited (“HFCHK"), did in the issued share
capital of the Company by virtue of HFC's interest in HFC Cayman and
HFCHK. HFC Cayman and HFCHK were directly interested in 976,720,587
and 47,443,003 shares of the Company respectively. HFC beneficially owned
42.07% of the issued share capital of HFL and was deemed to have the same
beneficial interests as HFL did in 628,746,775 shares of the Company.

HFL was deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned
subsidiary, Hong Fok Land Asia Limited (“HFLA"), did in the issued share
capital of the Company by virtue of HFL's interests in HFLA. HFLA was
deemed to have the same beneficial interests as its wholly owned subsidiary,
First Strategy Investments Limited, did in the issued share capital of the
Company by virtue of HFLA's interest in First Strategy Investments Limited.

as disclosed above, no other person was recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO as

having an interest or short position in the shares and underlying

shares of the Company as at 31 December 2014.

B -

(1) RS & E % MHong Fok Corporation
(Cayman) Limited ([HFC Cayman]) &&4@
BE(EB)ARQAA(BEEERS DB
Aien ARWBEAREZEMBARRIHFC
Cayman MBRBEEBTENAARCBEITRA
FriEE 2 B MR - HFC Cayman MBE
BXBEBDRIEZEMRBE AR RT 976,720,587 %
B&th I 47,443,003 IRAR 19 2 1% - BIREXE
HEAHFLEBITIRAAL2.07% 2 X R WIR A
HHFLMAZA AR 628,746,775 R (H 15 A 18
RIE @ o

(2) AR HFL® Hong Fok Land Asia Limited
(THFLAD BEA#ER - AltERARE &N
BABIHFLARARBCHITREAMEEZE
BiEEER - AR HFLABEEZ2EWER
7] First Strategy Investments Limited 2 #
@ MHFLARKARIBRITRAFERZE
B AR BB First Strategy Investments
Limited FriEA EHHR -

BEXFBEESN AT —mE+= A
S4+—B  BRRADAREES LB ED
$336 162 BEFFE 2B RMARE -
2 5 4 A TR R 2 B 45 BARREAR 15 o e
BHESERA -
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DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ON
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the changes of
information on Directors are as follows:

The service agreements of Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick
and Cheong Sim Eng, Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, Messrs. Chan Yee
Hoi, Robert, Leung Wing Ning and Kwik Sam Aik were renewed
for a further term of 3 years with their remuneration remaining

unchanged commencing from 1 April 2015.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions between the Group and parties regarded
as "Related Parties” under applicable accounting principles are
set out in note 27 to the financial statements. No transaction
disclosed thereto constitutes connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction of the Company subject to, among other
things, reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’

approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There was no significant event subsequent to 31 December 2014.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed amount of public float during the year
and up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7
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AUDITOR % B il

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 ZEEFF+ A=+ HLEFELRENE
December 2014 were audited by Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA WEREHBIEEE (BB 2t EBAER
Limited (“Crowe Horwath (HK)"). Crowe Horwath (HK) shall AR(TEERE(BBE))EZ BEEEE
retire as auditor of the Company at the forthcoming annual (BB)BRERRFERFERE LBEARQT
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of Crowe ZERBTG - REERRBF ARG LIRS
Horwath (HK) as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the —IHRBERENZEREEE (BB RER
forthcoming annual general meeting. AIZERED ©

On behalf of the Board REEZS

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick fER ki

Joint Chairman and Managing Director e S E FARAC T

Hong Kong, 27 February 2015 &% —T—HAF-A=-++tH
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DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, aged 65, is the Joint Chairman
and Joint Managing Director. Mr. Cheong is a member of the
Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He joined the
Group in 1991 and was appointed a Director in 1996 and a member
of the remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company in 2012. He has over 42 years' experience in property
development. He is a director of the Company’s substantial
shareholder, Hong Fok Corporation Limited (“HFC"), the shares
of which are listed on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited, and is a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Cheong Sim Eng, aged 54, is a Joint Chairman and Joint
Managing Director. Mr. Cheong graduated from the Chaminade
University of Honolulu with a Bachelor of Arts degree. He joined
the Group in 1991 and was appointed a Director in 1996. He has
over 29 years' experience in the construction industry. He is a
director of the Company’s substantial shareholder, HFC, and is a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Cheong Hooi Kheng, aged 62, is an executive Director. Ms.
Cheong is holder of a Bachelor of Science degree in Business
Administration from the California State University, Hayward and
a Master of Business Administration degree from the Chaminade
University of Honolulu. She joined the Group in 1991 and is
presently senior manageress of the property development division
of the Group. She was appointed a non-executive Director,
alternate to Madam Lim Ghee, in 2005 and an executive Director
in 2011. She has over 33 years’ experience in the construction
industry. She is a director of HFC, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and KTL Global Limited, the shares of which are listed
on The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited.

Mr. Chan Yee Hoi, Robert, aged 65, is an independent non-
executive Director. Mr. Chan joined the Group and was appointed
an independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company in 2004 and became as the chairman
of the audit committee of the Company in 2011. He was, in March
2012, appointed as the chairman and, in July 2012, re-designated
as a member of the nomination committee and the remuneration
committee of the Company. He graduated from the University of
Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Social Science degree. He has over
35 years’ experience in corporate restructuring, corporate finance,
capital markets, direct investment and asset management. Mr.
Chan held senior positions in various American banks in Hong
Kong and fund management companies.
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. Leung Wing Ning, aged 67, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Leung joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company in 2009. He was appointed as the
chairman of the remuneration committee of the Company in July
2012. He was educated at Stanford University, California and
New York University, New York where he obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree (Mechanical Engineering) and a Master of
Business Administration degree respectively. He has over 30
years' experience in senior management positions in international
trades and in banking and finance. He retired from Hang Seng
Bank Limited in 2007. He is an independent non-executive director
of Wing On International Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Kwik Sam Aik, aged 63, is an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Kwik joined the Group and was appointed an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company in 2011. He was appointed as the
chairman of the nomination committee of the Company in July
2012. He graduated from the University of Singapore with a
Bachelor of Accountancy degree. He has held various senior
positions with international banks in Hong Kong, Singapore and
China. He has over 28 years of experience in banking, covering
different areas including commercial and international banking,
corporate and investment banking and capital markets.

Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Cheong Sim Eng and Ms.
Cheong Hooi Kheng are brothers and sister.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc, aged 42, is a director of the business
development division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Accounting from the University of Southern
California in the United States of America and a Master of
Business Administration degree from the University of Chicago
Graduate School of Business. He joined the Group in 2000 and
has over 3 years' experience in the merchant banking field and 14

years' experience in business development.

Mr. Cheong Tze Hian, Howard, aged 40, is a director of the project
management division of the Group. Mr. Cheong holds a Bachelor
of Science degree in Accounting from the University of Southern
California in the United States of America. He joined the Group in
2004 and has over 3 years' experience in the private equity field

and 10 years' experience in project management.

Messrs. Cheong Tze Hong, Marc and Cheong Tze Hian, Howard

are the sons of Mr. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick.

Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng, aged 60, is a senior manageress of
the property management division of the Group. Ms. Cheong
graduated from Armstrong College of Berkeley in the United
States of America with a Bachelor of Science degree. She
joined the Group in 1993 and has over 36 years' experience in
the planning, organising and control of office administration and
personnel management. Ms. Cheong Puay Kheng is the sister
of Messrs. Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Cheong Sim Eng and Ms.
Cheong Hooi Kheng.
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Crowe Horwath.,

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF WINFOONG INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Winfoong
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 36 to 127, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as
at 31 December 2014, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

BEE%E (F8) SMEBRERAR
Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited

Member Crowe Horwath International

8 M 1SWEET7IE 1BET L2
9/F Leighton Centre,

77 Leighton Road,

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
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MIEEE)HNEEEF 127 ANEGA
BsHRE  EPEHE BERARRZZE—N
FTZA=T—HZEERAABBHHRIE
HEZBILFENGEERER  GABEK
Hih2HEK =R  GEEZHRIEEE

ERER URTESTHEMEREMER
AR -

~ A
A

13

o

A T R AUR I W AT

BERREFAREEREEGHEIAGRM
MEBWBREENREERRRD 2 HE
BRE - wEREEM AT HEE R
RLEFBEZAMEEFTRREREAM
TR I B AR BUL (TR 25 BKEF
HEARRSIHE)

Annual Report 2014 —ZF— PU4EAEH 33



Independent Auditor’s Report 18 . 4% 3 fili ¢

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall

presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 and of the Group's loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 February 2015

Lam Cheung Shing
Practising Certificate Number P03552
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
2014 2013
—F-mF —F=F
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Mt TR T
Turnover = 3 4 5,351 4,880
Cost of sales SHEMAR (718) (891)
Gross profit E 4,633 3,939
Net gain/(loss) on trading securities RGEHFWEFE/(BE) 33 (171)
Other revenue Hiplhz 5 8,504 6,337
Other net income HABAFE 5 2,763 1,471
Operating and administrative expenses mERITHEY (39,976) (48,770)
Loss before taxation BB ATEE 6 (24,043) (37,144)
Income tax expense FEHRX 7 = -
Loss for the year EREE (24,043) (37,144)
Attributable to: DA B
Equity shareholders of the Company ADAEREFEA (24,043) (37,144)
Non-controlling interests JErERE R - -
Loss for the year EREE (24,043) (37,144)
Loss per share ShEE 11
Basic BA HK cent (0.91) 781l HK cents (1.41) 784l
Diluted i HK cent (0.91)78fL  HK cents (1.41) &L
The notes on pages 43 to 127 form part of these financial FAIBEEE127 B 2 MBKIL SR 5 HRE
statements. Z—H5n
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

B 1 A B I 2 v g

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F1 —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICEEH)
2014 2013
—ET-F —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FEIT FHET
Loss for the year FREE _ (24,043) @ (37,144)
Other comprehensive income FREMEEBA
for the year
ltems that may be reclassified HignEoEsiEacER
subsequently to profit or loss
Available-for-sale financial assets: AN ESREE -
net movement in the fair value N ERE 2 8)FE
reserve (net of nil tax): MIHIE 2 $58
- Changes in fair value —FABHER
recognised during the year NEEE 1,150 1,080
Total comprehensive loss FRAZHEBELTE
for the year (22,893) (36,064)
Attributable to: AT FELS -
Equity shareholders of the RARERFEA
Company (22,893) (36,064)
Non-controlling interests FEFERR e A - -
Total comprehensive loss FRAZHEBELTE
for the year (22,893) (36,064)

The notes on pages 43 to 127 form part of these financial

statements.

N
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & M BN ML

As at 31 December 2014 3 ~FE—PyiE4f—H=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
2014 2013
—E—NF —E-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T TET FHT THT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets ETgE 13 945 1,118
Available-for-sale AEHESREE
financial assets 15 3,600 2,450
4,545 3,668
Current assets REEE
Trading securities R B 16 433 339
Inventories T8 17 248,362 250,161
Trade and other receivables &5 Rk E b fEIRBRTE 18 5,014 19,247
Cash and cash equivalents ~ IR&NIEEEHEY 19 41,507 58,686
295,316 328,433
Current liabilities nREEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HE e ERIE 20 9,415 19,147
Net current assets REEEFE 285,901 309,286
NET ASSETS BERE 290,446 312,854
Capital and reserves PR AR
Share capital [ 23(b) 131,790 131,682
Reserves @t 23(a) 158,656 181,272
Total equity attributable to ARQFEHRIZFEA
equity shareholders FEALRERR B3R
of the Company 290,446 312,854
Non-controlling interests  FEiRfR#EZS = -
TOTAL EQUITY i 290,446 312,854
The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 127 were HNEICEEF 127 B ZRANBRERIE
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 FEeR 2 —AF-_A-t+tAHILERE

February 2015 and are signed on its behalf by: RETEE - WHTINEEREREE

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Sim Eng

Director Director

4 BE

The notes on pages 43 to 127 form part of these financial FA3BEFE127 B Z M B E M B HRE
statements. Z—EB5 e
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Statement of Financial Position B #5IR L F&

As at 31 December 2014 3 ~FE—PyiE4—H =+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2014 2013
—2-mF —F-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bisr TET FTHET FET TET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR ZIKE 14 7,813 7,813
Available-for-sale AL ESREE 15
financial assets 3,600 2,450
11,413 10,263
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables HHREMBEUERE 18 247,669 249,398
Cash and cash equivalents RekBEeEEY 19 6 2
247,675 249,400
Current liabilities RBaE
Trade and other payables B REMEMNEE 20 905 858
Net current assets RBEEFE 246,770 248,542
NET ASSETS EERE 258,183 258,805
Capital and reserves BRAR
Share capital RN 23(b) 131,790 131,582
Reserves i 23(a) 126,393 127,223
TOTAL EQUITY BER 258,183 258,805

HNEEEF 127 AZIEAMERERTY A
BEeN - E-HE_A-+EABERE
T WAHTIINEERERESR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 36 to 127 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27
February 2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick Cheong Sim Eng

Director Director
EEa o

The notes on pages 43 to 127 form part of these financial A3BEEFE 127 EZMFEK I FEM B HE
aN

—Fb5 o

N

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 55 & sz B #

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

40

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LA#TCHHE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARARERE ARILER
Reserves
fifi
Capital
redemp-  Share Fair Non-
Share  Share tion option  value Retained controlling  Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve  profits Sub-total  Total interests  equity
R BhE F2R
ke ROVEE RERE  REAVERS REEM 0 M S22 BE  ARR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$000
Thr Thr TEx Thr TEr TEr TEr TEr  TEn TiEn
At 1 January 2013 RZE-=F-F-H 131582 4785 121 - - 202925 207,831 339413 - 339413
Changes in equity for 2013: —5-=FE5£%H)
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - BTN (B4 (37144 - (37,14
Other comprehensive EREMZE
income for the year WA - - - - 1,080 - 1,080 1,080 - 1,080
Total comprehensive ERZE
loss for the year FElE - - - - 1080 (37,144) (36,064 (36,064) - (36,064)
Equitysettled share-based MR AERE 2
transactions BREERS - - - 9505 - - 9505 9505 - 9505
At31 December 2013 R-F-=F+-A=1-H 131582 4785 121 9505 1,080 165781 181272 312,854 - 312,854
At 1 January 2014 RZE-MF-F-H 131582 4,785 121 9505 1,080 165781 181,272 312,854 - 312,854
Changes in equity for 2014:  —E-REEHET
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (4043 (24,043) (24,043) - (408
Other comprehensive EREMZE
income for the year LN - - - - 1150 - 1150 1,150 - 1,150
Total comprehensive ERZE
loss for the year BELs - - - - 1150 (24,043) (22,893) (22,893) - (22,89)
Shares issued under EREE T EEARN
share option scheme 208 456 - (179) - - 211 485 - 485
Lapse of share options BREXN - - - (41) - # - - - -
At 31 December 2014 RZE-RETZA=T-H 131,790 5241 121 9285 2230 141779 158,656 290,446 - 290,446
The notes on pages 43 to 127 from part of the financial FAIEEF 127 Bz MBS BHRE
statements. Z—H5m o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 B iR B3R

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2014 2013
—E-MFE —FT—=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BsE FBT FAET
Operating activities L
Loss before taxation BRI AIE B (24,043) (37,144)
Adjustments for: AT HEE -
Deficit on revaluation of buildings BFEHhEA 46 35
Amortisation of leasehold land FHE T A 22 22
Depreciation of other fixed assets HtwEEEERE 105 229
Interest income FLEWA (102) (82)
Net unrealised (gain)/loss on trading REGBEHZREH
securities (Wz=),/ EiEFE (33) 21
Gain on disposal of fixed assets & ElE B E M= (360) (1)
Wirite-back of provision for SR EERK AR 2 B E)
construction costs (2,449) (1,505)
Equity-settled share-based At REM 2 EREE
payment expenses N Ea - 9,505
Changes in working capital: LEESEH)
Increase in inventories FEE M (105) (175)
(Increase)/decrease in trading R SESH (), Hd
securities (61) 163
Decrease/(increase) in trade and B 5 R E A ERERIE
other receivables A, (1) 14,233 (548)
(Decrease)/increase in trade 5 R HAERERIE
and other payables Ve i (5,379) 1,076
Cash used in operations REFAZRE (18,126) (28,404)
Tax paid =ENEE
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBFMEH - -
Net cash used in operating activities KEEEKFRA RS EE (18,126) (28,404)
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABRTEEE IR - (22)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets & BlE & EMERIE 360 2
Interest received BHFIE 102 82
Net cash generated from RETEFTESE
investing activities ZIEEFEE 462 62
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows £S5 H£iRER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2014 2013
—F-nmE —F=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
BsE FBT FH&T
Financing activities RERE
Proceeds from shares issued IR iR &I T
under share option scheme BEITIRGN 2 A5 IE 485 -
Net cash generated from RMETEEEC RS
financing activities FEE 485 -
Net decrease in cash and BekBESEEYZ
cash equivalents B FRE (17,179) (28,342)
Cash and cash equivalents at the RENZRERES
beginning of the year ZEY 58,686 87,028
Cash and cash equivalents atthe end RERZEERRE
of the year ZEBY 19 41,507 58,686
The notes on pages 43 to 127 form part of these financial FAZEZEF 127 B2 MBS EHRE
statements. Z—EB5 e
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wingfoong International Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and acts
as an investment holding company. Its shares are listed
on the Main Board of the The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and Room 3201, 9 Queen’s Road
Central, Hong Kong respectively. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are property development
and construction, property management, provision of

horticultural services and securities trading.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)  Statement of compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"), which collective
term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. A summary of the significant accounting

policies adopted by the Group is set out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the Group
and the Company. Note 3 provides information on the
initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting years reflected in these financial

statements.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

LR BOR

HEHBRER AR ART]) ARE
REFAMAINARLA - LAKRE
BERAT - EROREBBE XS
ARABI(TERPT]) ER £ e &K
NEGEMPF SR R F 2 g e
% 7& Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda
EBERRERIRI201E EF E
MEBARZ FEXBRMERRRE
EoMEETRE REEERBKLE S
5o

B HEOR

a) B
ZEMBHRRERBEB BV BR
SRA(TEEHBREED ]
oEeREEetmAg ([
AEFEAg]) R ZAEER
ZEBUBHREED - B
ER(THEEGFER ) KEE -
BEARZETRAIRFEAT
GPIZ RERERBEMAK - 25
BHEBERMCOTAEEHARS
FERARES TR ZER
BREAE - TXHINAEERA
ZEIBEFHR IR -

TR ASCHEMBIERAE
SERARRERN A G
Rk TR R A 2 BT R e
2 BB B HmELER - TIRE
AZENERIMNT ST FEHE
AEBAHEIRETRRZER
BERRN AN B RAMEES -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2014 comprise the Company and

its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional

currency of the Company.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets are stated at their fair value as

explained in the accounting policies set out below:

- buildings (see note 2(f)); and

- financial instruments classified as available-for-
sale securities or as trading securities (see note
2(e)).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

b)

)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the
financial statements and major sources of estimation

uncertainty are discussed in note 28.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of business

and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature
of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated

if they share a majority of these criteria.

2.

HEAEHBOR (8

b)

c)

S e A A (4

AEBEFERATEMGE RBHR
RIEHFHE - HEEFHAR 2 1&
FEREFLARER 2R
AN %R ERER W5
ERECEACHEZ Y4 IS
HARD - RURE B R R R HAR HE AR
BREAER] °

EREAEMBRREEATEZ
BAEMBRELENSELEFH
ZH R AR 2 B IAETR
IRTEPT T 28 7Rt o

Vg k5o
REDBEIBRRAZRZE
DHREBZEBREERRETA
NAMITEFAN T ZLERE
ZHBEERPERN LR - UEE
BORERNEE 2 RRER R
BUERFEARENSEER
NI E 2 KA -

Dft

A REMS @ BRIEDBAE
AREL B0 A 7 s o B i E o B IR 7S
MHE EEIFME FFER
R an - BE EREmSEH
M2 EREERTZMET
AL BRISEEREEDE
TEETEE - @ARBFEAZE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power, only substantive rights

(held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s

net identifiable assets.

46 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

2.

EEEEralBOR (8

d)

BB 2 W) e i Il i
MEBAREmMASEZENNE
B-WAKERN2EERBNE
BhmA sk ARESTZ2EE A
BRENEBHERITEEIME
HM®  AYHZEEERZS
B-RAEAEERESEREN
B EZEEEREMN(AAKE
REMETRHE) -

REE AR ZIE B EHFRE B
HEEEFHKIEAEGHAREN
BHRK - EEARBMZ AR
RHERERERFAEERNR S
MmEEZEARETGEH - HR
fmBlR A MR R 2 AR -
SERNRRIBRGMEL 2 RE
RBBIRBARE RS 2 T
R T ARG - 1EERIOLER
BRRZERT

#?M%‘h%%EEZ%/
THENEEZRE
AEBYARRE E%WE%EA
ZAE AT B At 5K :
BAEEERAEREGSREE
BEZZEEDZZEMNEL -5
BEBEHME  AERERER
BRAFERMB LR HBNEE
FEZ L PIR &



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from equity attributable to the
equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between non-controlling interests and the

equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the
change in relative interests, but no adjustments are

made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in
that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost
is recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded
as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
(see note 2(e)) or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or jointly

controlled entity .

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less impairment losses (see note 2(h)), unless the
investment is classified as held for sale (or included in

a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

2. BEAEHBOR (8)

d)

Wi g 2> i) e b e bl 2 (A1)

TRV RS M a5 B AN B R B A 1
BmHFEI - JIAERS BB
RZBHER - RAKERERZ
RS AR BRRR R
ErEEmMEMEERAFA
DT IFERES EARFRE
2 Nk IR AR R M 2 AR
BITAZES -

REBRWE LRz E B
BEHRAITHIE  DIFREER
5 BRCHERAEENERR
RS BRIEL AR - AR
BRI R EE) B EYHHE
TEHAE - R EEREE -

i 7S £ [ 55 5 Y I8 2~ R PR il 4 -
AVERIIE L & %K B R R 2 A0
B YWNIEERNERRE
REsIER LA EE - ZATHE A
AR 2 s 1R A AR
B RBERREEREEN S
Rz N FE(RME2(e)) kR0
B QRS ARZEH ERIRED
HHERZKA (WER) °
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company’s policies for investments
in debt and equity securities, other than investments in
subsidiaries, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially
stated at fair value, which is their transaction price
unless it is determined that the fair value at initial
recognition differs from the transaction price and
that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an
active market for an identical asset or liability or
based on a valuation technique that uses only data
from observable markets. Cost includes attributable
transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise
below. These investments are subsequently accounted

for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end
of each reporting period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any dividends or interest
earned on these investments as these are recognised
in accordance with the policies set out in note 2(g)(iv)
and (v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention to hold
to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities.
Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortised

cost less impairment losses (see note 2(h)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

e)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
(continued)

Investments in securities which do not fall into any
of the above categories are classified as available-for-
sale securities. At the end of each reporting period
the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or
loss being recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve. As an exception to this, investments in equity
securities that do not have a quoted price in an active
market for an identical instrument and whose fair value
cannot otherwise be reliably measured are recognised
in the statement of financial position at cost less
impairment losses (see note 2(h)). Dividend income
from these investments is recognised in profit or loss
in accordance with the policy set out in note 2(g)(iv)
and, where these investments are interest-bearing,
interest calculated using the effective interest method
is recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(g)(v). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 2(h)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments
or they expire.

2. BEAEHBOR (8)
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ARREEEEZBBEZEREM
2EBAFERLR QT ERE
ZHEmPELRE - fEARBIIME
Ao RERMSUTEMERIA
BEAHERATETRASETEL
BAFBHFBLERTHRKAEA
R A ROR BB R (R
2(h)) - HEEEZBREWARE
MEsE2(q) (iv) Frsk 2 R R 18 &
TATER - MZERE RS
REBRNEETE 2T B TIRE

BYRE 2(a) (v) PRk Z BREE R R ER R
WHER - AR ERZTRENX
FLAORME (RHFE2(h)) - 25K
HEABENEEENOBEERAR
=.
LERENAEEAEBEZE
BEZ AT AR A E %

HHERSRERIMz BRE
TR o

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—Y4E4ER 49



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. HEAEHBOR (8)
(CONTINUED)
f) Other property, plant and equipment HAbE ~ B Do i

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from the fair value of
the leasehold land at the inception of the lease (see
note 2(g)) are stated at their revalued amount, being
their fair value at the date of the revaluation less any

subsequent accumulated depreciation.

Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity
to ensure that the carrying amount of these assets
does not differ materially from that which would be
determined using fair values at the end of reporting

period.

The other items of property, plant and equipment
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses (see note 2(h)).

Changes arising on the revaluation of properties
held for own use are generally dealt with in other
comprehensive income and are accumulated
separately in equity in property revaluation reserve.
The only exceptions are as follows:

- when a deficit arises on revaluation, it will be

charged to profit or loss to the extent that it

EEEHELHHEERZET
(ZBFZAFEANERORS
REEE T A FESFHE
(RME2(9)) DREEHER
(MERE[B#Z A FERE
MRERTEITE) FIBR -

EfESAR - RAERRBTY
T BRZFEEZRAER
RBEMRRARFEEEZE
BAYEEARE

ME  BERSEZHMEE R
AR AR RFE T E KR B BT 18 71 BR
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exceeds the amount held in the reserve in HREZSEHAIREEE
respect of that same asset immediately prior to EREEBEANREZ2ER
the revaluation; and 1k &

- when a surplus arises on revaluation, it will be
credited to profit or loss to the extent that a
deficit on revaluation in respect of that same
asset had previously been charged to profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing

costs (see note 2(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred
from the property revaluation reserve to retained

profits and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or
valuation of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using the
straight-line method over their estimated useful lives

as follows:

- Leasehold land classified as held under finance

leases is depreciated over the term of lease.

- Buildings situated on leasehold land are
depreciated over their estimated useful lives of

40 years.

- Furniture, equipment and other fixed assets are

depreciated over 5 years.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

f)

g)

Other property, plant and equipment (continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable
basis between the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its

residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a

lease.

i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as being held under finance leases. Leases
which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, with the following

exceptions:

- property held under operating leases
that would otherwise meet the definition
of an investment property is classified
as investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease; and
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

g)  Leased assets (continued)

0

Classification of assets leased to the Group

(continued)

- land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value of
a building situated thereon at the inception
of the lease, is accounted for as being held
under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease.
For these purposes, the inception of the
lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over

from the previous lessee.

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in
profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting period

in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an
operating lease is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease term except
where the property is classified as an investment
property or is held for development for sale (see
note 2(i)(ii).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

h) Impairment of assets

i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity
securities and other receivables
Investments in debt and equity securities and
other current and non-current receivables that
are stated at cost or amortised cost or are
classified as available-for-sale securities are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the

following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default

or delinquency in interest or principal

payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment

that have an adverse effect on the debtor;

and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity

instrument below its cost.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)

Impairment of assets (continued)
Impairment of investments in debt and equity

securities and other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 2(h)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance with
note 2(h)(ii).

For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEEHBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
h)  Impairment of assets (continued) h)  BEAME (4D
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity i) REHERIEARZE SN 7
securities and other receivables (continued) B R A W AR I 2 o (E
(#F)

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in the
asset's carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
in the fair value reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative
loss that is recognised in profit or loss is
the difference between the acquisition
cost (net of any principal repayment
and amortisation) and current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that asset

previously recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised in other

comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEAFHBOR (%)
(CONTINUED)
h)  Impairment of assets (continued) h)  REAME (D)
i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity 1) TETER IR AR 78 2510 2 17
securities and other receivables (continued) BB Al AR 2 e (E
(#4)
Impairment losses in respect of available- aEBEATENEM
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the A BB b B A T SRR
subsequent increase in fair value can be BEEEREENSMH
objectively related to an event occurring Bt - AlAT &G
after the impairment loss was recognised. 7 B (B 8 18 P) A
Reversals of impairment losses in such B - REEELEZE
circumstances are recognised in profit or T EEEREER
loss. PR ©
Impairment losses are written off against BEEBEMAAEEEERE

the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors directly and any amounts
held in the allowance account relating to that
debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance
account are reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in

profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h) Impairment of assets (continued)
ii)  Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to identify indications that the property, plant
and equipment (other than properties carried
at revalued amounts) may be impaired or, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is
the greater of its fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

h)

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued)

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated
to reduce the carrying amount of the
assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if

determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable

amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which

the reversals are recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % - —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU Tt E)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
i) Inventories
i) Horticultural services

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the standard cost basis
(which approximates the average actual cost)
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated

costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses
of inventories are recognised as an expense in
the period the write-down or loss occurs. The
amount of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense

in the period in which the reversal occurs.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014  #; % & —Y4E+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LIi#ICi]{H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

i)

Inventories (continued)

ii)

Property development

Inventories in respect of property development
activities are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost and net realisable values
are determined as follows:

Property under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials
and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses, an appropriate proportion of
overheads and borrowing cost capitalised
(see note 2(s)). Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less
estimated costs of completion and costs to
be incurred in selling the property.

Completed property held for sale

In the case of completed properties
developed by the Group, cost is
determined by apportionment of the total
development costs for that development
project, attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price less costs to be
incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties held for
sale comprises all costs of purchase, costs
of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014  # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

)

k)

m)

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 2(h)), except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment terms
or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In
such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less

allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value being recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest

method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
measured in accordance with note 2(p)(i), trade and
other payables are subsequently stated at amortised
cost unless the effect of discounting would be

immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been

within three months of maturity at acquisition.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
n) Employee benefits
i) Short-term employee benefits and contributions to

defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated
services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at

their present values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share option
reserve within equity. The fair value is measured
at grant date using the binomial option pricing
model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair
value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that

the options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014  # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

n) Employee benefits (continued)

ii)  Share-based payments (continued)
During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of
the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to
not achieving vesting conditions that relate to
the market price of the Company’s shares. The
equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account) or

the option expires (when it is released directly to

retained profits).

iii)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when it recognises

restructuring costs involving the payment of

termination benefits.

64 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

2.

EEEEralBOR (50

n) @ BRI ()

11)

i)

LUR (7 25 2 RER) 1135 (4
SBEHMA AHREEN
BhEHE S TAERN-
ERNEFERERN R
NP ENEAHEEER
BlE FHEBRF R G
AN BIEREERZAE
RERREE  AIHBER
REBELAENRE -
CHREAR/MAIHBESE
BEAFLAR AR
PrEBERENEREAE
([ B 35 i B v o 8 VR HE AR
ERE) HERNEXF
& EARF Ry T E R
)57 B IR 1 IR AR08 MR RV BR
S o ¥ o B TE BB AR R
WHRER  BEERREE
1T (BARBMREER) 3K
B (ERAENER
BEN) R RLE

Al 77 7
BEBBANNAEETHEE
BUB R 1 5% 518 A i R R
5 BHERY RS BERAE
MEBAKAR (ARF
ERE)HER -



Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous

years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014  # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0)

Income tax (continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences
relate to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax
loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried
back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable temporary
differences support the recognition of deferred tax
assets arising from unused tax losses and credits,
that is, those differences are taken into account if
they relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination),
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the
reversal and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they

will reverse in the future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0)

Income tax (continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is
reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that

sufficient taxable profits will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from
each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are
offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax
assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company
or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Company or the Group intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously; or
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014  # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

0) Income tax (continued)
- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same

taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered, intend
to realise the current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a net basis or

realise and settle simultaneously.

p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent
liabilities
i) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e., the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the “holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms

of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEAFHBOR (%)
(CONTINUED)
p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent p) M EYER - M RSk
liabilities (continued) 118 (81)
i) Financial guarantees issued (continued) i) IR 2 B R (4E)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. The fair value of financial
guarantees issued at the time of issuance is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual rates
charged by lenders when the guarantee is made
available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not
been available, where reliable estimates of such
information can be made. Where consideration
is received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised in
accordance with the Group's policies applicable
to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss
on initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 2(p)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon the
Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed
the amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee, that is, the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #f% & —PY4FE1 —H =

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

T—HIFFE

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

p) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and contingent

liabilities (continued)

ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected

to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or

loss as follows:

i) Sale of properties

When properties under development are
sold, income is recognised when the property
development is completed with the relevant
occupation permit issued by the authorities
and the significant risks and rewards of the
ownership of the properties are passed to the
buyers. Deposits and instalments received on
properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are recorded as forward sales
deposits and instalments received.

ii)  Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

iii)  Service income
Service income is recognised when the relevant

services are rendered.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014  # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

iv)

vi)

vii)

Dividends
- Dividend income from unlisted investments
is recognised when the shareholder’s right

to receive payment is established.

- Dividend income from listed investments
is recognised when the share price of the

investment goes ex-dividend.

Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using

the effective interest method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term,
except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable. Contingent rentals are
recognised as income in the accounting period in

which they are earned.

Management fee income
Management fee income is recognised at the
time when the services are rendered.
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2.

Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

r

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Statement of financial position items are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in

equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or

loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014  # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

2.

(LU TTtHE)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

s)

)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or
ceases when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the qualifying asset for its intended use or
sale are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

t) Related parties (continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(V)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either

the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled

by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014  # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. BEEHHBOR ()
(CONTINUED)
t)  Related parties (continued) t)  BEAL ()
Close members of the family of a person are those BN B3R R BERL B F8 TR AR A] 57
family members who may be expected to influence, or 2 HXZBEAZEMMEZE
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the BRXHNREKE -
entity.
APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. HERIBRT B SR AT 7 vs S it

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entitles

The Group has applied the amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities for the first time
in the current year. The amendments to HKFRS 10 define an
Investment entity and require a reporting entity that meets
the definition of an investment entity not to consolidate its
subsidiaries but instead to measure its subsidiaries at fair
value through profit or loss in its consolidated and separate

financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entitles (continued)

To qualify as an investment entity, a reporting entity is

required to:

° obtain funds from one or more investors for
the purpose of providing them with investment

management services;

o commit to its investor(s) that its business purpose
is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment Income, or both; and

° measure and evaluate performance of substantially all
of its investments on a fair value basis.

Consequential amendments have been made to HKFRS 12
and HKAS 27 to introduce new disclosure requirements for

investment entities.

As the Company is not an investment entity (assessed
based on the criteria set out in HKFRS 10 as at 1 January
2014), the application of the amendments has had no impact
on the disclosures or the amounts recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

3.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

R JE W T B 846 T 7 4 A 5 i
e ) (17 1 5 8 v 1 )
(#1)

T B LS 10 5% - WM
88 o D50 12 9% 2 A Ak o 05 27
SR EF T (BT AR) (80)

RUAERREBRZENR REE

BEA

e MR- AFIUELREERSED
FEAMRSRMIREETIERY

o MEREHAF HUES{ED
REZEBRE HERER

HE REBAIEERE ZE

EHFEMBHRELENE 12K REFR
BETERF 27 AL ARRIERT - ASI
AHREBERB I BERTE -

HRAABYIFREER (R _F—N
F-A-HARBEEEVBRELENSE
105% 2 ZERIGHE) R Z FERTH A
SEEAMBRANEELMERT
BIETE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014  #; % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICH]H)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 32
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities for
the first time in the current year. The amendments to
HKAS 32 clarify the requirements relating to the offset
of financial assets and financial liabilities. Specifically, the
amendments clarify the meaning of “currently has a legally
enforceable right of set-off’ and ‘simultaneous realisation
and settlement’.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group does not have any financial assets and financial
liabilities that qualify for offset, the application of the
amendments has had no impact on the disclosures or on the
amounts recognised in the Group's consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 36
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets
for the first time in the current year. The amendments
to HKAS 36 remove the requirement to disclosure the
recoverable amount of a cash-generating unit (CGU) to
which goodwill or other intangible assets with indefinite
useful lives had been allocated when there has been
no impairment or reversal of impairment of the related
CGU. Furthermore, the amendments introduce additional
disclosure requirements applicable to when the recoverable
amount of an asset or a CGU is measured at fair value less
costs of disposal. These new disclosures include the fair
value hierarchy, key assumptions and valuation techniques
used which are in line with the disclosure required by HKFRS
13 Fair Value Measurements.

The application of these amendments has had no material
impact on the disclosures in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #; % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting

The Group has applied the amendments to HKAS 39
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting for the first time in the current year. The
amendments to HKAS 39 provide relief from the
requirement to discontinue hedge accounting when a
derivative designated as a hedging instrument is novated
under certain circumstances. The amendments also clarify
that any change to the fair value of the derivative designated
as a hedging instrument arising from the novation should
be included in the assessment and measurement of hedge
effectiveness.

The amendments have been applied retrospectively. As
the Group does not have any derivatives that are subject to
novation, the application of these amendments has had no
impact on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in
the Group's consolidated financial statements.

HK(FRIC) — Int 21 Levies

The Group has applied HK(IFRIC) — Int 21 Levies for the
first time in the current year. HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 addresses
the issue as to when to recognise a liability to pay a levy
imposed by a government. The interpretation defines a
levy, and specifies that the obligating event that gives rise
to the liability is the activity that triggers the payment of the
levy, as identified by legislation. The interpretation provides
guidance on how different levy arrangements should be
accounted for, in particular, it clarifies that neither economic
compulsion nor the going concern basis of financial
statements preparation implies that an entity has a present
obligation to pay a levy that will be triggered by operating in
a future period.

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 has been applied retrospectively. The
application of this Interpretation has had no material impact
on the disclosures or on the amounts recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

3.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICq]H)

R JEL W i B S8BT 7 8 WA 5 it
ﬁéﬁ)ﬁﬂ ([ 78 8 S 5 i o4 B0 )

RGN0 L T AL
HE G AT i (BT AR)
AEEERAFEEREREE G
HERF I E B IT4E TARAELH
2ix(BETAR) - BEGRTERIE39
FUERT A MAEERETEL TR
EETBRATEERKETEELN *e
FHURBBIE - BRI ATNER » (£ H
EEMSIRANEETEETTART
BEEHERBHEHPAREREFEZ
A o

ZEBATCDEPRM - AAKEY &
EAAEEREZITETR RS
ETHAREGAMBHRR ZBEER
FfERLRAEBIE

FH(BEBMERERRZHEA) -2
RIS 21 R4 B

NEBRAFEBREAES (BB
HHREREBEES) -R2BE21R
#HH e BB (BEBRUEREREZE
e)-REELIREREABINBA
BHAEERER2EE -  Z2EBER
THBTE Y HIBEEZAE
EEAEFIMAETERI B 2E
o ZRERTABRTHE g5 E
B RIREIES BRIEIE L E A F
RIS B EEREMBERER I
TREZBARESETEABRIBK
I S R

ER(ARMBRE2REZES) -2
BE2VREEBHRRM - RAZBEY
AEEERA W REK 2 W E L PTHER
SRAEBRTE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014  # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

4. TURNOVER 4. BEMW
Turnover represents revenue from provision of property EHETBERBRERMETERSE LE
management and horticultural services. No properties BERGEzWE REBEE-T—NER
were sold during the years ended 31 December 2014 and —E—=F+-A=+—HIEFEM
2013. The amount of each significant category of revenue EHEME - FAREEEBRRAZS
recognised in turnover during the year is as follows: BERWEERzSRBIT
2014 2013
—E—UF —F—=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue from provision of property REREMESERSE 2 W 457 429
management services
Revenue from provision of RERERERZARE 2 Wi 4,894 4,451
horticultural services
5,351 4,880
5. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 5. Jefllodi B JCAb BN 5
INCOME
2014 2013
—E-mE  —E-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET
Other revenue Hiug s
Interest income on financial assets not R AT EFABREZ
at fair value through profit or loss SRVEE 2 M EWA
— Interest income from banks —REHRITHEWA 102 82
Management fee income (note 27(c)) EEBWA (FFE27(c) 2,510 2,737
Rental income from operating leases B ANASIA 5,840 3,386
Dividend income from listed securities EEHEREWA 20 18
Others Hith 32 114
8,504 6,337
Other net income HAb U X F5E
Gain on disposal of fixed assets HEEEEE 2 W 360 1
Deficit on revaluation of buildings EFEHEA (46) (35)
Write-back of provision FREERR AR 2
for construction costs 4Gl 2,449 1,505
2,763 1,471
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

6. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

6. BBiniEH

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BRELRISEE MR ¢
2014 2013
—E-mE —Z=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAT
(a) Staff costs (including directors’ (a) BEIMA
emoluments) (BREESHS)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TENMEMET 25,668 25,675
Contributions to defined contribution FERIRET B
retirement plan (note 24) (M93E24) 371 336
Equity-settled share-based AR BERE 2 EnEE
payment expenses (note 22) N FAZ (HEE22) - 9,505
26,039 35,516
(b) Other items (b) HfhEB
Amortisation of leasehold land A& 1t 0 5 22 22
Depreciation of property, plant and L/E =5
equipment R e 105 229
Auditors’ remuneration ZERETEN &
— audit services — Bz 440 440
— other services — H A AR 60 60
Operating lease charges: EERARY
minimum lease payments iR OINEN
— land and buildings — T RIEF 4,847 4,839
Cost of inventories (note 17) FEMA (FFE17) 718 891
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

7. INCOME TAX 7. Pifisi
a)  Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss a)  EAEHARNZBIHE
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of Bermuda and BEEREREBELZHERE
the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to HE  AEEEABANZSER
any income tax in these jurisdictions. ERFAER
No Hong Kong Profits Tax for the years ended 31 AR EERMREFERNERS
December 2014 and 2013 has been provided for as the WAL ET E SRR T - AR AR E
Group has no estimated assessable profits arising in HEZE-T-—MFER-FT—=F
Hong Kong for both years. TZA=tT—BLEFEZEEF
1SHIAE o
b)  Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting loss b) R R B A S B B S B
at the applicable tax rates: 1wl BB R
2014 2013
—E-OFE 2 —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FA&T
Loss before taxation PRI AIER (24,043) (37,144)
Notional tax on loss before BRTIATET R 2 &S -
taxation, calculated at the rates LB AERERER
applicable to losses in the REBBZHEFTE
jurisdictions concerned (3,967) (6,129)
Tax effect of non-deductible TR B R 2B
expenses Fa 407 2,020
Tax effect of non-taxable income FERTA BT E (83) (18)
Tax effect of unused tax losses KR ARARIBEGE
not recognised 2R 2 3,700 4,155
Tax effect of prior years' tax losses ~ ANFEFFBEFE 2 FHIE
utilised this year R B2 (79) (28)
Others HAtb 22 -
Actual tax expense BEEMIARAX - -
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

o

RBFBERB R EEDI(F6228 )R 11
E78EH M2 E [ FE B RAEHI(£32
B)F 161 HWELEEHSMT ¢

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8.

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 78 of
Schedule 11 to the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622), with reference to section 161 of the predecessor

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme based 2014
fee in kind bonuses contributions  payments Total
e 2 Wkt  —3-mE
EELk ENAlE B4 BAGHEME  ERNAER fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn FiEn FiEn T TER TiEn
Executive directors: HIES
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, Bk
Joint Chairman (with effective ~ BETE(E-Z—NE
from 23 June 2014) NAZTZRBEN) - 2,762 1,200 10 - 3,972
Cheong Sim Eng, BY5R
Joint Chairman (with effective ~ BETE(E-T-N4E
from 23 June 2014) AAZTERREN) - 15 1,200 15 - 1,230
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEW - 1,176 - 17 - 1,193
Independent non-executive BUFHIES:
directors:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RIE 150 - - - - 150
Leung Wing Ning 2xE 150 - - - - 150
Kwik Sam Ak P=k 150 - - - - 150
450 3,953 2,400 42 - 6,845
Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme based 2013
fee in kind bonuses contributions  payments Total
e 24 Wk#s  =%-=
EZHE  REUIAG B BAGHEMES  ERNAR fif
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn FiEn T TEn TiEgn TiEn
Executive directors: HIES:
Cheong Pin Chuan, Patrick, EinR
Chairman & - 2,653 1,200 31 1,567 5,451
Cheong Kim Pong Bel - - - - - -
(resigned on (R=%-z%
18 November 2013) T-AT/\BET)
Cheong Sim Eng BYK - 4 1,200 5 1567 2,776
Cheong Hooi Kheng EEH - 1,148 - 15 1,567 2,730
Independent non-executive BUIHRITES
directors:
Chan Yee Hoi, Robert RIAE 150 - - - 4 192
Leung Wing Ning 2xE 150 - - - 42 192
Kwik Sam Ak P=5 150 - - - 42 192
450 3,805 2,400 51 4,827 11,533
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors of
the Company as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Company or as compensation for loss of office. There was
no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

As at 31 December 2014, the directors held share options
under the Company’s share options scheme. The details of
the share options are disclosed under the paragraph “Share
Option Scheme 2013" in the Directors’ Report and note 22.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two
(2013: one) are the directors whose emoluments are

disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments in

o 4 (F)

REBEZE-ZT—NFR-_FT—=F1+=A
=+—BLEFE AEEHERAR
AU E B AT E ARSI S B A
REIRERMABK ZE KBREE -
REBEZE-ZT—NFR-_FT—=F1+=A
=T —HIEFE  BETURHEREE
EREXRERETAME -

RIB-—WFE+-A=+—0H EFH
BARRNRIBBAE BT 2B E - Bk
BZHABREFEREZ [T —=F
FBRERT 8] —BRARME22HKE -

I A L
BAREHMALS  WE(ZE—=

F-R)REF HFEMRMESS
BEE - Ht=%(—F—=F:@0O%)

respect of the other three (2013: four) individuals are as AT ZH@mEmT
follows:

2014 2013
—E-OFE 2 —T=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiET FAET
Salaries and other emoluments e K E At Hr A 8,873 11,528
Discretionary bonuses EYIBTEAL 800 800
Share-based payments VARG BEFET IR - 3,335
Retirement scheme contributions RIRET IR 50 59
9,723 15,722
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9. w1 (8
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

The emoluments of the three (2013: four) individuals with

the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

=R (ZZ-=F: mR)RSHFHMA
TZFHMAEATEHEN

2014 2013
—F-mF  —F-=F

Number of Number of

HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000
HK$4,500,001 — HK$5,000,000

There was no amount paid during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 to the highest paid employees
as inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office.

2,500,001 # 7T % 3,000,000 7% 7T
3,000,001 87T E 3,500,000/8 7T
3,500,001 /7T % 4,000,000 /87T
4,000,001 87T E 4,500,000/8 7T
4,500,001 /7T % 5,000,000 /& 7T

individuals individuals
A ABL

1 —

1 1

1 1

- 1

- 1

3 4

REBEE—Z—NFE-_FT—=F+=
A=+—BLLEE  R5FNESH
T I RIE - ARSI HEME

RGBS AF R I AR B 225 ok BB A

18 -

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10. A2 vl BE s #5  AHEAN i 48
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of HK$2,257,000 (2013:
HK$12,876,000) which has been dealt with in the financial

statements of the Company.

ARBIEEFBEAEBGEEAEER
FERARAMBRERPERE 2
2,257,000 L BB (ZE—=4F

12,876,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

11. LOSS PER SHARE

12.

a)

b)

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$24,043,000 (2013: HK$37,144,000)
and the weighted average number of approximately
2,632,130,000 (2013: 2,631,652,000) ordinary shares

in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013 does not assume
the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share
options as the exercise of the share options would

result in a decrease in loss per share.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which

are organised by business lines (products and services).

In a manner consistent with the way in which information

is reported internally to the executive directors of the

Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment, the Group has presented the following four

reportable segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

Property development: this segment develops and
sells the Group's residential properties.

Horticultural services: this segment provides
horticultural services.

Property management and other related services:
this segment mainly provides building management

services.

Securities trading: this segment engages in the trading
of securities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Company’s executive directors monitor the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible and current assets
with the exception of available-for-sale financial assets,
deferred tax assets and other corporate assets.
Segment liabilities include trade creditors, accruals
and other payables attributable to the activities of
the individual segments managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from the depreciation or
amortisation of assets attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA" i.e., “adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”, where
“interest” is regarded as including investment income
and "depreciation and amortisation” is regarded as
including impairment losses on non-current assets.
To arrive at adjusted EBITDA the Group's earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed to
individual segments, such as directors’ and auditor’s
remuneration and other corporate administration
costs.

In addition to receiving segment information
concerning adjusted EBITDA, management is provided
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter segment sales), interest income from
cash balances managed directly by the segments,
depreciation and amortisation, material non-cash items
and additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales
are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.

12. 23t (4)

a)

2 RUERE -~ B R A
MO BEERREDBROEE
RS RRABMITESRLAT
EREREREIBRELZE
BBERAE:

Aﬁé?\i;‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ/ KnEE
EHAUHLESREE BT
HMIEEENMEM AR EERI -
DHEAEREERN DB ZHER
PREZENESRE  EBHE
AREMEMNERIR A5 2 8E
BER -

Wea RRX IR 2EZEN A
EZHEBREIH (RENRE
M ERBHEEEESE 2
BN DEERENE ©

W

1':&

BRBESBEN 2T ER K&
FHEEEBITDA] - BN [$0BRFI B

BIE - MERBHEAIZEARER
Fl ERTRE] BEREK
A [ITEREE] REERDE
EZREEE - BER[EHE
EBITDAl » REBZ AR THE
FEETBRERSEZEEBER
E—SHE NEEREREEZ
B & A R R B I TIERBA S o

BRUEIBASHAEEBITDAZS
iﬁéﬁﬂ&\\  ERERIREEERK
= (BESBEMEHESE) ’\*EE&
ERRESEHRZFBWA -
*EW&#E@EME%Z%E&%
i EABHESEE MABIEM
BEEZOEER - DERMHEE
ThE 2 E NI AN L pRFBLLET B
EZERMIERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

a)

12. Zr 303 (40

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) a) L GE KR AR (E)
Information regarding the Group's reportable REBE_T—MOFR=_T—=F
segments as provided to the Company's executive +ZA=+—BLFEZERS
directors for the purposes of resource allocation and fic K 5T E p BB RIB AR RIBIT
assessment of segment performance for the years EEREBEAEERE I EZ
end 31 December 2014 and 2013 is set out below. BERER T -
Property management
Property Horticuttural and other Securities
development Services related services trading Total
EER Bk IEERRARERE 25 it
2014 2013 2014 013 2014 013 014 213 2014 013
S e s e e i L
HKS000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000 ~ HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HK$'000
Thn TEn . TER  Thn T TEr  Th T T TEn
Revenue from extemalcustomers RESIEP Z4E - - 4 457 1 - SR |
Inter-segment revenue ARRNE - - # 40 109 108 - - 150 148
Reportable segment revenue = ENE - - 4,935 4491 566 537 - - 5501 508
Reportable segment loss)/profit - 5578 (£8)/&7
(adjusted EBITDA) (352 EBITDA) (19,325 (29207) 955 623 551 51 3 (181)  (17786)  (28244)
Reportable segmentassets 57 EERE X004 26631 1418 1542 99 87 445 ¥ B3N6 269016
Reportable segment iabilties 5 EEE 7808 1749 162 249 1Y) bij il i 8039 17797
For the year ended 31 December 2014, revenue of BE-_ET—MNWE+-—_RB=+—
approximately HK$1,316,000 was derived from a single =] ¢¢r§ S e =Y
external customer who contributed 10% or more of A U 5 491,316,000 7T © 5%
the total revenue of the Group. This revenue was EEMBERANEFBBAINZ Y
attributable to the horticultural services segment. 10% A o ZINBREBEE
BR# D 4E »
For the year ended 31 December 2013, revenue of HEr S —=F"+_A=+—
approximately HK$670,000 was derived from a single HIEFFEE BE—HINEFPE
external customer who contributed more than 10% H IR ZE4670,0008 7 © 2 &
of total revenue of the Group. This revenue was FHEEBBANEFBBKZEY
attributable to the horticultural services segment. 10% ° Z U 5 B B 2 AR5 5
48 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. Z8idH (4)
b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or b) WESBRIAEEEL BHAERA
loss, assets and liabilities i Z Bk
2014 2013
—E-OFE 2 —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiExT FA&T
Revenue Wz
Reportable segment revenue mED B E 5,501 5,028
Elimination of inter-segment WD LR
revenue (150) (148)
Consolidated turnover RE R 5,351 4,880
Profit or loss B
Reportable segment loss WESTER (17,786) (28,244)
Elimination of inter-segment DL ST
profit (150) (148)
Reportable segment loss REREBEEINEF 2
derived from the Group's WEDIEBE
external customers (17,936) (28,392)
Other revenue and net income HAb s R A FRE 2,978 2,917
Depreciation and amortisation e o (127) (251)
Unallocated corporate expenses RO ARIFAX (8,958) (11,418)
Consolidated loss before taxation FRIAIAR S 1R (24,043) (37,144)

Annual Report 2014 —F—PU4EAEH 89



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 12. Bk (40

b)  Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, profit or

b)  BH A BUKAE A - WAERA

90

loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

fei 2 #R (4)
2014 2013
—EB-mFE  —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Assets EBE
Reportable segment assets WEDEEE 253,106 269,016
Available-for-sale financial assets AN ESRERE 3,600 2,450
Unallocated corporate assets ROWMRARIEE
— cash and cash equivalents -BeRREEEY 39,432 56,564
— other assets - Hi&EE 3,723 3,971
Consolidated total assets e BEMER 299,861 332,001
Liabilities &fE
Reportable segment liabilities mEDEAE 8,039 17,797
Unallocated corporate liabilities HEEARIAE 1,376 1,350
Consolidated total liabilities IREBERE 9,415 19,147
) Other segment information c) o 43 U8R
Property
Property Horticultural management and other Securities
development services related services trading Unallocated Total
EEE Eaki WFERREBRBES 2525 #9E ot
2014 2013 2014 013 2014 2013 2014 013 2014 013 2014 2013
“E-mE C3-cF CE3-mE C3-cF ZR-ME 3§ CF-RF C3-SF 0 C3-MF D32 CE-@E CE-cF
HKS'000  HKSO000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
Tién TEn ThL Thn T T Thn Tén Thn T Tién T
Interest income 9 15 - 93 67 102 8
Interest expense - - = - - - -
Rentalincome from operating leases 5,840 3386 - - - - - - - 5,840 3,386
Depreciation and amortisation - - @) [ () [ - (107) 231) (127) (251
Income tax expense - = - - - - =
Equity-settled share-based
payment expense - (6,626 - (32 - - (2845 - (9,508)
Additons to non-current
seqment assets during
the year - - - - - - - 2 0
d)  Geographic information d) JBEER

No geographic information is shown as all the Group's
revenue and results of operations are derived from and

all the Group's assets are located in Hong Kong.
Winfoong International Limited 4% 4 5 BX A R /A 7]
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS 13. Al ¥
The Group A4
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings Furniture,
use under held forown equipment Total
finance use carried and other fixed
leases at fair value fixed assets assets
RIRIERE
HAFER BAFE ER - RE
BAEE L FIBRZ REAM EEERE
2R BHEaRET EEEE #HE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FHBT
Cost or valuation: A EE
At 1 January 2013 R-—Z—=F—H—H 970 200 5,262 6,432
Additions NE - - 22 22
Disposals & - - (34) (34)
Deficit on revaluation B4 - (35) - (35)
Less: elimination of B RIETE L
accumulated
depreciation - (5) - (5)
At 31 December 2013 MZT—=F
+t=A=t-8 970 ... 160 5250 6,380 __
Representing: HER :
Cost D% 970 - 5,250 6,220
Valuation — 2013 HE-——T—=F - 160 - 160
970 160 5,250 6,380
At 1 January 2014 R-ZE—mFE—H—H 970 160 5,250 6,380
Disposals HE - = (1,477) (1,477)
Deficit on revaluation B Al - (46) - (46)
Less: elimination of B RIEITE L
accumulated
depreciation - (4) = (4)
At 31 December 2014 RZZ—OF
t=A=+-8 ... 970 ... m__ 3773 4,853 __
Representing: HER :
Cost PR 970 - 3,773 4,743
Valuation - 2014 HE-——T—NF - 110 - 110
970 110 3,773 4,853
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13. Bl ¥ (4)
The Group (continued) AR (47)
Interests in
leasehold
land held
for own Buildings Furniture,
use under held for own equipment Total
finance use carried and other fixed
leases at fair value fixed assets assets
RIRERE
HAOFER UAFE & BE
AHEE i SR 2 REA BEEEE
Z2fEm BEBAET BEEEE “E
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Accumulated amortisation HIHHERITE ¢
and depreciation:
At 1 January 2013 R-ZZE—=%—HF—H 218 - 4,831 5,049
Charge for the year RFEEZH 22 5 224 251
Written back on disposals HERED - - (33) (33)
Elimination on revaluation EEiS ks - (5) - (5)
At 31 December 2013 R-_E—=F
+=A=t-8 280 - 5022 5262 _
At 1 January 2014 R-E—MF—HF—H 240 - 5,022 5,262
Charge for the year RFEEZH 22 4 101 127
Written back on disposals HEZE O - - (1,477) (1,477)
Elimination on revaluation EEiS ks - (4) = (4)
At 31 December 2014 N-ZT—mE
+=A=t-8 22 - 3646 3908
Carrying amount: BREDFE
At 31 December 2014 RZE—OF
+=-A=+—8 708 110 127 945
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+=-A=+—8 730 160 228 1,118
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

a)

Revaluation of buildings held for own use (continued)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, buildings were
revalued based on depreciated replacement cost by an
independent valuer. The following table analyses the

buildings carried at fair value, by valuation methods.

Fair value hierarchy

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

13, [ % A (4)
Fe b E1 MG 2 A ()

a)

i

(LU TTiAHE)

—=F+=

A=1+—H BFREHa—%28
IfhER T EEEKARETT
EXGEE - TRATEBMBEZX
BAFEIRZET -

AT EZH

Fair value measurements using

AVEFE
Quoted prices Significant
in active other Significant
markets for observable unobservable
identical assets inputs inputs (Note)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HBIEE HittE X EXFAER
WERTZRE ABERARE BAHE ()
14 #28 £3R
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TET THET
Recurring fair RERNTF
value measurement Bt g
Buildings held for HEERET:
own use:
- In Hong Kong - E\f’%
As 31 December 2014 —EFZA=+—H = = 110
As 31 December 2013 m,7 =F+ZA=1—H - - 160
Note: For fair value measurement under Level 3, inputs for the assets Wik : ME=ZRTAFEFEME * &

is not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs).

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there were
no transfers among Levels 1, 2 and 3. The Group's
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

EZ@ABIBRTARBREABED
5 HH (AT A EEm ASE) -

REBEE-_T—

ME+—A=1+—

BIEFE  F14 - F2HRES
Mz B R - AEEPBRE
ETERN S| BB E Ao IE R

£ ARAFESSEREZ

-
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

a)  Revaluation of buildings held for own use (continued)

Movements during the year in the balance of these

Level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:

13. [l s ¥ (1)

a)

Fifie {2 T AN (B0

FERZEEIN DT ETEER

Buildings held for
own use in Hong Kong

KEERET-B8

2014 2013

=F-mFE —F-=F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

At 1 January Rn—A—H 160 200

Depreciation charge for FEMEER

the year (4) (5)

Deficit on revaluation EHiHEA (46) (35)

At 31 December W+—A=+—H 110 160
Valuation processes of the Group REEGBERRE

The Group’s buildings were revalued at 31 December 2014
and 2013 by Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited, who is an independent firm of chartered surveyors
and has among its staff members of the Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors with recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued. For the buildings,
their current use equates to the highest and best use.

The Group's finance department considers and discusses
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for
financial reporting purposes, including all key inputs to
the valuations and property valuations movements as
compared to the prior year.

Valuation techniques

The valuation was determined based on the depreciated
replacement cost with reference to the current cost
of replacing an asset with its modern equivalent asset
less deductions for all physical deterioration and all
relevant forms of obsolescence and optimization
based on significant unobservable inputs. These inputs
include:
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Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED)

a)

Revaluation of buildings held for own use (continued)
Valuation techniques (continued)

Cost of construction

Cost per square feet to completion was estimated
based on the gross floor area using direct market
comparables and taking into account of life and size of
property and its facilities as at 31 December 2014.

Estimated depreciation

Deducting all sources of depreciation by straightline
method over the useful life, including physical
deterioration and functional and economic
obsolescence and adjusting by the physical condition
of the building.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques
during the year.

Information about fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3)

13, [ % A (4)

a)

Fife R Z AN ()

R ER T ()

LA

HEMER-_Z—-NFE+=A
—t-BERRREERERER
MG LB INEL K AMERE
AR O 12 R A B e AR 1 5 EY

1E T E

AT ERBERESETER
R FHATRRRIRHTE -
BIEEABRMINAEE RAEHE
MIRRE - WIRBEFTEBAMR M

FRMBERMILEES -

BERAAVEFEFERERTT
BEGAEE (B34 28

Valuation Unobservable Relationship of unobservable
Description technique input inputs to fair value
BTG ARE
it fh{ER FABERARE HATENBR
Buildings Based on depreciated Cost of construction of The higher the estimated cost per
replacement cost HK$1,133 (2013: HK$855) square feet to completion, the
per square feet higher the fair value
BT ERrEEERA BEAARGTHR3IET GERREKGAKAER

(ZZ—=% :85587T)

Estimated depreciation over

the useful life of 50 years

(2013: 50 years)

BREREHNA+E (T
—=F AtF)EETE

AFELE

The higher the estimated
depreciation, the lower the
fair value

fhEHrElS - R HERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

13. FIXED ASSETS (CONTINUED) 13.

The revaluation deficit of HK$46,000 (2013: HK$35,000) has
been recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.
Had these buildings held for own use been carried at cost
less accumulated depreciation, the carrying amounts would

have been HK$423,000 (2013: HK$443,000).

b)  The analysis of carrying amount of properties is as

el ¥ (40)

= {5 41 46,000 7 T
35,000/87C) BN A B RIER -

WMz E#FHEE BEFRAAREFIT
EERE HBR®EE®KA423,00008 T
(ZZ—=4% : 443,000/7T) °

a

b) Wyl S B E

follows:
2014 2013
—Z-mE T =F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
In Hong Kong REE
— medium-term leases —Fh A E 818 890
Representing: HER
Interests in leasehold land IR B RN E R LIFHE
held for own use under BAMAE s
finance leases 708 730
Buildings held for own use AR TFESI R 2 F5E
carried at fair value BRETF 110 160
818 890
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. RHBA R 2 B
The Company
RAF]
2014 2013
—E-mFE ZE-—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH#E Ttz
Unlisted shares, at cost R ETRGD - KA 1 1
Capital contribution in respect of BLLARR D R EME 2 R
equity-settled share-based payment EENFRFIEERE R 7,812 7,812
7,813 7,813
The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries TREREFIEZEAEEERE &
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of ESaiErHEA AR ZER -
the Group.
Proportion of ownership
interests held by
the Company
KRR EE RSO
Place of Particulars
incorporation  of issued and
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activity
TR BEE
NREH RS RARGEE B# ME  EEEK
Winfoong Assets Limited British Virgin -~ 100 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment Holding
Islands US$1 each REER
RERAES  BREE1ETZ100RERR
Century Elegant Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100% Provision of property
ENBRARA BA 1L ER management services
RENZERRYE
Cheung Kee Garden Limited  Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and 450,000 - 100% Investment holding and
R tEBRAT e non-voting deferred shares provision of
100 &3 12 450,000 horticultural services
ERFERLR REBERRRHEZ R
Donwin Property Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property holding

REREXBRAA BE 2R BB ESEX]
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 14. AW A w2 B (8)
(CONTINUED)
Proportion of ownership
interests held by
the Company
KRR EERERLA
Place of Particulars
incorporation  of issued and
Name of company and operation  paid-up capital Direct Indirect Principal activity
LR ERIRAR
ARER B RAHE HE B FEER
Fort Property Management ~ Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of
Limited B 2B management services
BENZERERAT RUERR%
Sui Chong Finance Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of financing and
Limited G 2R B management services
HERBBR AT and trading of securities
RERE REERE
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares - 100% Property holding
(H.K)) Limited BB 2B NERHE
HEEIR (BB) BRAT
Sui Chong International Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100% Provision of property
Resources Limited BE 1,000 i LAk management and project
hEBRERERAR management services
REMEEER
BERERRS
Super Homes Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares and - 100% Property development
BE 100 non-voting deferred shares NEER
100 R B0k 12 100 8%
ERFERLR
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

15. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL 15. w43k 4 ik U
ASSETS
The Group and the Company
EEERADF
2014 2013
—F-nmFE  ZF-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Unlisted debt securities BAFERLED
at fair value EI5ES 3,600 2,450
16. TRADING SECURITIES 16. XYk
The Group
NI
2014 2013
—FmE ZB-=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET
Listed equity securities at fair value FIRAES (BATE)
—in Hong Kong -5 433 339
17. INVENTORIES 17. #8
The Group
REE
2014 2013
—T-mE =F=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHL
Horticultural plants EEZER) 461 356
Completed properties held for sale HIEHETIYME 247,901 249,805
248,362 250,161
The completed properties held for sale are held in Hong RERETIVMEERAESRANEE
Kong under long-term leases. THE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

17. #8] (&)
WAL WL 2 A RSB H I -

17. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED)

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense is as follows:

Horticultural plants

BEEEY
2014 2013
—T-ImF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FiHT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEZHRA 718 891
18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B 5y B J b HE WMl B
The Group The Company
rEE AN
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-mE —T-ZF —EZ-mE =5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
THET T TR FEL
Amount due from a B —FRI B AR
subsidiary 08 - - 247,298 249,027
Amount due from a fellow Y —FERZMBLR
subsidiary (note 27(b)) A (51 27(0) 701 682 = -
Trade debtors BIE SRR
(note (a)) (Fi5E(a) 719 911 = -
Receivables for monies AR EIEENE
held by the solicitor HEHE
in accordance with the B IR
relevant property sale BB
agreements 50 13,981 - -
Other debtors Hit e iRE 961 815 - -
Loans and receivables ERREKERE 2,431 16,389 247,298 249,027
Rental and other deposits HekEMEe 1,877 1,909 = -
Prepayments BIHE 706 949 371 371
5,014 19,247 247,669 249,398

R —FEMNBAR R —EEREMNER
BlzRBEDERAR RS EEEEE
B o

The amounts due from a subsidiary and a fellow subsidiary
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

FEESREMEKERE FBEHER
—F R E K ER R o

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

18. B 5 B 30l M B X (480)

(CONTINUED)
a)  Ageing analysis a)  JRER B
Included in trade and other receivables are trade RE S RAMEWIRIEA - UK
debtors with the following ageing analysis based on B HRE  ARBEAMBNERE
the invoice date, as of the end of the reporting period : R ZBRE DT -
The Group
rEE
2014 2013
—E-mE  —=-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FExT FA&T
Within 1 month —fEAAT 517 577
After 1 month but within 3 months —Z=1{#A 198 323
Over 3 months BA=1EA 4 11
719 911
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 25(a). REBZEERIEHRNWF
25(a) °
b)  Impairment of trade debtors b) MR BRI Z WA

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
there was no impairment loss made against the trade

receivables.

BE_Z—NFER_T—=F
+ZRA=+—HIEFE ' WEE
W E 5 IRIERE RS -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 18. B Bh B JU A M B MR I (%)
(CONTINUED)
¢)  Trade debtors that are not impaired ¢  RTWRALZ HEN B SR
The ageing analysis of the trade debtors that are BRIk H AR AT TIRE 2 B
neither individually nor collectively considered to be B HRIEZREROITIT ¢

impaired are as follows:

The Group
rEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Neither past due nor impaired BEAR@HTARRE 517 577
Less than 1 month past due BaE LR —EA 161 281
More than 1 month past due 2N —EA 41 53
202 334
719 911
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired BRI 7R 18 HR 7T AR OB (B 2 FE W BR 1B TY
relate to a number of independent customers for W R T AN e R e 2 B
whom there was no recent history of default. MR o
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B8 BB R TORE 2 U ERIA T)
to a number of independent customers that have a good WRETHEAEBERIFAER
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, BB EP o ERATES -
management believes that no impairment allowance ERERG ARNEEEZETE
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has HIREREE R BERERMIBR
not been a significant change in credit quality and the AEERE - MEBERZSER
balances are still considered fully recoverable. VEHR E R -
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

20.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

19. B&RBEFHD

The Group The Company
rEE /N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—Z-mF —E-=F —E-IF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THT THET THT
Deposits with banks and FHRERTR
other financial Hib e pgE
institutions ZER 41,500 58,684 6 2
Cash on hand FERSE 7 2 = -
Cash and cash equivalents RAEMBARR
in the consolidated statements  REETRER
of financial position and ZRERREEED
cash flows 41,507 58,686 6 2

At 31 December 2014, bank balances carried interest at market
rates which range from 0% to 0.3% (2013: range from 0% to

0.4%) per annum.

R-B—ME+-A=+—H2Z2R1TE
BIRBENTFO%E03%(ZTE—=4F :

0% £0.4%) 2 THIGF| R E -

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20. B 5h B JU Al A MR
The Group The Company
Xr5E N
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-mF —E-=F —2-mF —T-=f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TET FET THET TET
Trade creditors ENESkRE 1M1 6,413 = -
Retentions payable JEFRE FIB 50 2,451 = -
Other creditors and HivERTARIE
accrued charges LIRS 8,909 10,007 905 858
Financial liabilities measured %% $AA% R 51/8R
at amortised cost ZeRaE 9,070 18,871 905 858
Receipt-in-advance TEEU A 345 276 - -
9,415 19,147 905 858
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 20.

(CONTINUED)

All of the trade and other payables, apart from the retentions
payable, are expected to be settled within one year or are
repayable on demand.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
the trade creditors based on the date of receipt of goods/
services is as follows:

50 B JU b JE A MR IR (480)

BRIEMRERIEIN  MBEES ME
e RIBTRRT R —F A IR ER

fEI& o

RIMEBMR - ENE SREBEERVIER

(= O
p=Nu[u]

/R BB BREE AT

The Group
rEE
2014 2013
=F-mFE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEIT FAT
Within 1 month —fEAAT 8 -
After 1 month but within 3 months —(ARBETBB=EA - 32
Over 6 months BiAs~E A 103 6,381
111 6,413
21. DEFERRED TAXATION 21. EHEBLH
a)  Deferred tax liabilities not recognised: a)  REBHERZIEEBEA R :
The Group and the Company had no material deferred REBERARRNRZZE—MNF &
tax liabilities not provided for at 31 December 2014 and —E-=F+-—A=+—BfE
2013. ERRIERENERNRLEHIES
f& o
b)  Deferred tax assets not recognised b) AR ZIEEBIHE E

At 31 December 2014, the Group and the Company
have not recognised deferred tax assets in respect
of cumulative tax losses of HK$322,201,000 (2013:
HK$300,256,000) and HK$15,684,000 (2013:
HK$15,684,000), respectively, as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the tax losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant taxation
authority and the relevant taxable entity. The tax losses

do not expire under current tax legislation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED 22. MRty R Re g 2 RERR B 3E AL B
TRANSACTIONS
The Company has a share option scheme which was KRABRZTE—=FAAZ+HBE
adopted on 25 June 2013 whereby the directors of the M—IERENRERT S B - ARAIE
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite EERBENBERRESERSEE B
eligible participants including the directors or any employee BAEESMBRARAIESSEMEES
(whether full time or part time) of the Group or an affiliate (EREBLGRB) U R AEE B
and any consultant, agent, or advisor of the Group or an NEEAIA RS - B AR
affiliate, to take up options at $1 consideration for each TZRERBEERE BRENRLD
acceptance. The options vest from the date of grant and are AEEEL N T-FREMA T -
then exercisable within a period of ten years. Each option MBRER TRHEARNREARF]
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share — AR B BAR D IRBEEE -
in the Company and is settled gross in shares.
(a) The terms and conditions of the grants are as follows: (a) BHESKEGAWT -
Number of Vesting Contractual life
instruments conditions of options
THE#HE B RY BIRESHHIR
Options granted to directors:
KYEFE2ERE
—on 18 December 2013 80,100,000 Immediate vest 10 years
-RZZE—=F+=A+/\H T RNER R T4
Options granted to eligible employees:
BYEEREILZERE
—on 18 December 2013 108,300,000 Immediate vest 10 years
-RZZE—=F+=A+\H T RNER R T4

Total share options granted 188,400,000

B e IR g
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED

22. DBy 2y e gt Z MR B A 5

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) (#)
(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of (b) ViR JBCHE S B B I - 25 4T e
share options are as follows: T
2014 2013
—E-IE -z—=
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price of options price of options
g Bk i Bk
TR E A TR 2!
HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000 '000
THET T THT T
Outstanding at the beginning ~ F M AFT{E
of the year 0.1168 188,400 - -
Exercised during the year FREITE 0.1168 (4,150) - -
Lapsed during the year FRERH 0.1168 (950) - -
Granted during the year FRERL - - 0.1168 188,400
Outstanding at the end FRERITHE
of the year 0.1168 183,300 0.1168 188,400
Exercisable at the end FERATRE
of the year 0.1168 183,300 0.1168 188,400

The options outstanding at 31 December 2014 had an
exercise price of HK$0.1168 (2013: HK$0.1168) and
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 8.96
years (2013: 9.96 years).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

22. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

22. DB
(%)

P By R0 2 B 4 45 552 5

(¢)  Fair value of share options and assumptions (c) O JRCHE A1 B Bt
The fair value of services received in return for share ERE R L ERE R R E W R
options granted is measured by reference to the fair WATFEE2EREEREZ R
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair FEFE - REBRESMETA
value of the share options granted is measured based FETDIBE BT ERNE
on binomial option pricing model. The contractual life 2 BRENSHNFHAELE
of the share option is used as an input into the model N AR - BHIREITHEER
and expectation of early exercise is incorporated into AZIE B TE BIEEY o
the model.
Fair value of share options 2013
and assumptions BREAFERBRS —E-=F
Fair value at the date of grant RELHBAFE HK$0.0505 7% 7T

Share price

Exercise price per share option
Expected volatility

Option life

Expected dividend yield
Risk-free rate

Exercise multiple

X HERE
BEREZTEE
TEHR IR

PR HAR
TEHRLE
X
TR

The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility
of the share prices of the Company. Expected dividend
yield is based on historical dividend payment record
of the Company. The risk-free rate was determined
with reference to the yield rate of the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Notes with duration similar to the
expected life of the options. Changes in the subjective
input assumptions could materially affect the fair value
estimate.

Share options were granted under a service condition.
This condition has not been taken into account in the
fair value measurement of the services received at
the date of grant. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

HK$0.1100 & 7T
HK$0.1168 & Jt
66.57%

10 years F

Nil =

2.24%
1.66-2.80

BEHREDER AN R B RERESE
B g o TEEIR B T E R AR AT
BRELRS - BERREL2E
FRNNEESREBE(FHEAR
AR 2 WS XREE -
ITEBBAREBERRESTHAF
EAFTELEEARE -

BRAERBIR R R G - N
FEWIRB A EFER L A Y
W EEHAZIRMT - IEEBABR
R 2 TSR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a)  Movements in components of equity

23. EAS Bl fi

a)  HELRALRTR Sy 2 5 8

The Group AAE
The reconciliation between the opening and REEEARSEERTD Y
closing balances of each component of the Group's HA W) B AR 45 40 Y WEE S NS A
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated e EEE o
statement of changes in equity.
The Company A ]
Reserves
fife
Capital Share
Share Share  redemption option  Contributed  Fair value Accumulated
capital  premium  reserve  reseve  surplus  reserve losses  Sub-otal Total
hagE  BhE
R BhiEg B B HAR& LVERE  EHER it it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TR Tén T T T T T Tin Tin
At 1 January 2013 #-3-=5-A-1 131,562 4785 12 - B8y - (110289 129514 261,0%
Changes in equity for 2013: “E-CEEREY:
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - - (2gm 287 (12876
Other comprehensive income for e year ~ EMERZEMA - - - - - 1080 - 1080 1080
Total comprehensive loss for the year EREEBRER - - - - - 1080 (12878 (117%)  (11,79)
Equitysettled shere-based transactions ~ WIRAEERZEREERS - - - 9,505 - - - 9,505 9,505
At31 December 2013 R-Z-Z6+23=1-0 131,58 4,785 121 9506 380 10800 (1316 1728 28806
At 1 January 2014 H-3-mE-A-A 131,582 4785 12 9505 234897 1080 (123165) 121223 258805
Changes in equity for 2014; & Iﬁf@ﬁﬁﬁ
Loss for the year MR - - - - - - ) B )
Other comprehensive income for e year -~ EMERZEMA - - - - - 1,150 - 1,150 1,150
Total comprehensive loss for the year : - - - - - 1,150 (2.257) (1,007) (1,107)
Shares issued under share option scheme - TR &/ T 2 BRI 28 456 - (179) - - - m 485
Lapse of share optons ERERT - - - (41) - - 4 g =
At 31 December 2014 RZE-METZR=1-H 131,790 5,241 12 985 234897 230 (125381 126393 258183
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. HAR B A ()

b)  Share capital b) A
Authorised and issued share capital HIE R C TR
2014 2013
—2-mE —T-=F
Number Number
of shares  Nominal value of shares  Nominal value
RIS A RiHEE AE
‘000 HK$'000 '000 HK$'000
TR TEx T FEx
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of SREE0.05
HK$0.05 each BT LRk 3,000,000 150,000 3,000,000 150,000
Ordinary shares, issued and LER - BT
fully paid: RER:
At 1 January ®—HA—H 2,631,652 131,582 2,631,652 131,682
Share issued under BB EIT 2
share option scheme B#IRMR 4,150 208 - -
At 31 December B+=A=1+—H 2,635,802 131,790 2,631,652 131,582
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TERFEAGRERTFEIR
dividends as declared from time to time and are ZIRE - BEARFGHRLER
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the AE-—ZREE - FELTER
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard HEARBIZHNABEZARSR
to the Company's residual assets. o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

<)

Nature and purpose of reserves

i)

i)

iii)

iv)

Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium account
and capital redemption reserve is governed by
the Bermuda Companies Act.

Share option reserve

The share option reserve comprises the portion
of the grant date fair value of unexercised share
options granted to directors, eligible employees
and other eligible participants of the Group
that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based

payments in note 2(n)(ii).

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Company
represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares issued by the Company
and the aggregate of the share capital and the
share premium accounts of the subsidiaries
acquired. Under the Bermuda Companies Act,
the Company may make distributions to its
members out of contributed surplus in certain

circumstances.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative
net change in the fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets held at the end of the reporting
period and is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in notes 2(e) and 2(h)
(i).
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23. HEA B fili i (41)
o BRI

i)

1)

fii)

iv)

J 7 i 167 B A A 1 i A
P A7 4 18 iR S B AN T [ 8
BeERAXBRERRE
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BEE e

TR
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BEE AEBEIRA
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

d)

e)

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2014, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to equity
shareholders of the Company was approximately
HK$109,516,000 (2013: HK$111,732,000).

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by securing
access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between
the higher shareholder returns that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages
and security afforded by a sound capital position, and
makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of

changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total debt (which includes interest-bearing
borrowings and other financial liabilities) less cash and
cash equivalents. Capital comprises all components of
equity.

During 2014, the Group's strategy, which was
unchanged from 2013, was to maintain the net debt-
to-capital ratio at below 60%. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares,
return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing
or sell assets to reduce debt.

23. YA Refili (4)

d)

e)

23 Wl filt Al

RZZE—NF+=ZA=+—8"
AR TFARBIESEEE AR
1858474 109,516,000 (=
T—=4 :111,732,00087T) °

A B

AEEEREAZERZRARIR
EAEERENERRBSELSE
EERE  DEEBEEARKF
HEZERNMREEEARES
BEKAZEE  BESKRA
¥ B 97 I A EL o AR B A 75 2R R

S o

Bk

REE R K& E R E AREE
TRARER  AERSKRE
RERTAEABE RSEER
IR B R B AR S R 2 4T BR
RARIE 2 MBS T - WE AL
BRI 2 B HEAREHBIEL

= o

MEFIEP —1 - ARBEAER
5%§E¥¢§$tb%%%$%% HE
REE R AEEZEBE
BRAEH(BREEE A
BB REREIAEE
EBYE - EAREMERAK

e

RIE—UFER » KNEEZ KB
BT —=—FRENE - MR
B FEHER L EERG60% °

RUEFRFEZLLE - $E.EX
ERBEORIRN KRS - BT
MR - MRERERER - 1T
MEBRESHEEE - RS
&7 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED) 23. HAR KA ()

e)  Capital management (Continued) e)  HARHL ()
The net debt-to-capital ratio at 31 December 2014 and RZE—NFER-E—=F+=
2013 was as follows: A=1T—BzEB%FEHEXRL
T -
The Group The Company
K&E NG|
2014 2013 2014 2013
—E-NF —T-=% —E-|F —T-=F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
PirsE TEx T FEr FEL
Total debt BHEE
Financial liabilities included FABSRAM
in trade and other FERERE
payables SHAaE 20 9,070 18,871 905 858
Less: Cash and cash B RekEE
equivalents ZEN 19 (41,507) (58,686) (6) 2)
Net (cash)/debt (Re) /BERFE (32,437) (39,815) 899 856
Capital 2 290,446 312,854 258,183 258,805
Net debt-to-capital ratio BERFRLHES
BARR N/ATER NATER 0% 0%

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, neither the Company n= E—T—=F+=
nor any of its subsidiaries were subject to any A= NN R S D)
externally imposed capital requirements. BARREEBFERINT IS

24. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT 24, F B ks

PLAN

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the AEBRBEE B RGBT ENE
“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident PR BERERGNEEDENRNER
Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under ZEEHITRBIMAESETE([EE
the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. ®EtEl]) c BIESFEARB LT
The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan ANER 7 RFEH-FOENREE - BiR8
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF Heitdl EXkEESEERKES
Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required BB AZL5% MZTEHE®R - BSA
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’ BRI A EBR A 30,0008 (= —M
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income FXA—HR1A25,000%87T) - Z%&tE
of HK$30,000 (HK$25,000 prior 1 June 2014). Contributions to ZHFRTIASHE -

the plan vest immediately.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity and interest rate risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group's
exposure to these risks and the financial management
policies and practices used by the Group to manage these
risks are described below.

a)

Credit risk

The Group’s and the Company’s credit risk is primarily
attributable to trade and other receivables, amount
due from a subsidiary and cash at banks. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. The Group grants a
credit period of not more than 30 days from the date
of billing. Debtors with balances that are more than 3
months overdue are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

In respect of the amount due from a subsidiary, the
Company reviews the recoverable amount of the
amount due from the subsidiary at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amount. In
this regard, the management considers that the
Company’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of cash at bank, the Group and the Company
limit their exposure to credit risk by placing deposits
with financial institutions that meet the established
credit rating. Given these high credit standing, the
management does not expect any counterparty to fail
to meet its obligations.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in
which customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

25. A B AT B K 2 TR

=8

RBET LN ERR T ENE

BEKzZLFBEETEL AEE@
Rz ERBEANEEANEELE
BB TS E IR R R B RR AT

1 £2 L B

AEERARBZEERBRER
HEZREMEKIRE - Bl —
M B DR FIRARRITHRS
EL - BEREEHERKZEER
BE  THZREEERRSERE

oo
e
%I ©

RESREMEREBEMS @ &
BHBERBEAETSEEEZ
BREETEETE - AEERT
EEHTHBBAEHREHEI0
H- - @B =-@AREEHRECE
BABEEMAREERERS
ARTE—FEE - AEEBE
TWERE F IR ©

AWK B A BREMS » AR
AR HERREM TR SEA
Z UK B AR RIA - AREREE
AR EIFRIAA - SR E R 1R
RENEMS  EEERELRR
AZEERBERZME -

RIRITREMT - AERERAR
AEBNESRREEFANE
BB ARG EEERR -
ENZEcREBEERRE
R EBEEEMRSTEEET
HEME-

AREEHZEERREIERR
BFZ BRI IER P AT
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TR AEBYESEAEPE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

a)

b)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, other than the
concentration of credit risk on the amount due from a
subsidiary, the Company does not have any significant
concentration of credit risk.

The Group and the Company do not provide any
guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 18.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands.
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of
the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities,
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the end of the reporting period) and the earliest date
the Group and the Company can be required to pay:
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BZzEREERRI - AREL

BEERBRETOEN

ZRER B R AR B AR T 4E
R B AR EE AR A A
EERR

ERASERE S KEMEKE
HRELZFRERRZE—FE
BWBEEMBNHIE 18

L 4 R B

AEEAENCEERDARN
EXRF2HREER  BEMNBA
HRRSETHHRREREBEER
MR RSB R - NEE
AIBRNEHERERDEST
KEEEBTHREROZIER 1
miERERTEERSHELEE
ZoRBBAERHAERES
NENEEHERBZADES

R

TRERIAKERARR 2SR
BERBERRZHBTAOIEN
B DREAOARFTHRSRE
(BEEREHNXRFEZNE
3R RIMEFE A - R
BERRZMERGFE) ARKE
BEANRAIRRKEEZ&RER
HIEtE



Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

b)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. A LB AT B R AP (&)

b) B4 B (%)

The Group The Company
458 G|
a4 1
“E-RE 5E i 5
Contractual Contractual Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow cash outflow cash outflow
Gl it G AR
BefH Rei Refi Rei
Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Carrying Within 1 Canying
year o on amount at year oron amount at year or on amount at year oron amount at
demand 31 December demand 31 December demand 31 December demand 31 December
gt RzA HtzR #zA
& S -£ =82 -0 Sz & “t-B2
JREX EEE AREX BEE JRER BEE HHER FEE
HKS000 HKS /000 HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Tin Thn TR Thn Th Thn
Tradeand other payables  BHREHERSE 9070 9070 18471 18871 905 905 858 88
¢)  Interest rate risk ¢) 3 Ja Bt
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from AEEZNERBRTIEXRERS
cash and cash equivalents. The Group does not EREEEY - BRIRITERA
anticipate there is any significant impact on the cash KBTI EFEEAEE  AE
and cash equivalents because the interest rates of HiERRe KR EZEDTIEX
bank deposits are not expected to change significantly. FEMERTE -
In the opinion of the Company’s directors, the Group's RARREERE  AEBEAR
and the Company’s exposure to interest rate risk is AIE¥ 2 FIE @RI TAEKX o
insignificant.
d)  Currency risk d) BB

Currency risk arises on financial instruments that are
denominated in a currency other than the functional

currency in which they are measured.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to currency
risk is insignificant.

BEE KB AL E G
EMINESRTH -

AEBRARBEES 2 EEER
WRERK o

Annual Report 2014 —ZF—Y4E4ER

115



Notes to the Financial Statements B} %53 3 bl

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

e)

Fair values

®

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of
the Group's financial instruments measured at
the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value
hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation technique as

follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured
using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities at the measurement
date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured
using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable
inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not
using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which

market data are not available

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured

using significant unobservable inputs
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25. A Bg AT B R AP (41)

e)

AP

(1)

RATES B2 2 MEAE
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RFEZHR
TEREFNIREHARIZLE
BHEESENAEES
MTEQNFE  WEED
Mg EERE13RLF
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A EEFERSEGBE
JE T R A BUR A A
BEMREEMHmMOE
BREERR - WHWT -

o FIGEE: @
£1RBARE - B
NEHE R BBRAE
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AFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 25. b R B A B R A P (%)

FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

e) Fair values (Continued) e)
(i)  Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(Continued)

Recurring fair value measurements

AT (#)
(i) HRFEFEZEHBEE
RKEfE (&)

EREATENE

2014
—EZ-nf
The Group The Company
148 A0
Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2014 categorised into 31 December 2014 categorised into
H-E-BET=AZ-RATEHEIEA H-2-BE1=R=t-BATEIEIES
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£-4 28 E=R Chl -4 28 =4 Chl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén TEn Tén Tén TEn TEn Tén
Assets iE
Available-for-sale financial  FEHESE
assets AE 3,600 - - 3,600 3,600 - - 3,600
Trading securities R5ER 433 - - 433 - - - -
4,033 - - 4,033 3,600 - - 3,600
Recurring fair value measurements mEMATERE
2013
—T-=F
The Group The Company
158 ARF
Fair value measurements as at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 2013 categorised into 31 December 2013 categorised into
RZF-=E+-A=+-BLTVEHENER RZB-ZETZR=t-BATEENEA
Level1 Level 2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
g8 E £=4 GH | E-8 £=0 GH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThL THL TEn T ThL TEL i TR
Assets iE
Available-for-sale financial  FEHESE
asses A& 2450 - - 2450 2450 - - 2450
Trading securities R5ES 339 - - 339 - - - -
2,789 - - 2,789 2,450 - - 2,450
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

25. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)

e)

Fair values (Continued)

@

ii)

Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
(Continued)

The fair value of financial assets traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
end of the reporting period. The quoted market
price used for financial assets held by the Group
and the Company is the closing price.

The fair value of financial assets that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based
on market conditions existing at end of each

reporting period.

There were no transfers of financial instruments

between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Fair values of financial instruments carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the
Company’s financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost are not materially different
from their fair values as at 31 December 2014
and 2013.
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25. A Bg AT B R AP (41)

e)

AP (8)

(1)

11)

BAFEFEZEHBEE
REE (&)

REBMBEEZERE
ERAFEERBSHRD
BEMSE AKERAK
RAFHAZERMEEMA
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EE AKBERRRERN
EAEREHREHREAT
ISR RER

REREBMITAE IR
F2 AN E 32 8 I
o
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+=—A=+—HHAFE
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26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a)

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
properties held under operating leases. The leases
typically run for an initial period of one to three years,
with an option to renew the lease when all terms are
renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent

rentals.
At 31 December 2014, the total future minimum lease

payments under non-cancellable operating leases in

respect of properties are payable as follows:

The Group as lessee

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

26. WERERYE

(a) AKERZERELEMEOTA
ZWMEZAEBA - ZFBREZT
MEMBRER—E=F "EE
EMRERTA RRREN - %%
HEMERSIAES -

RZE—NUF+_A=+—8 "
BRAME 2 TR BEE G E M E
TezRREMNKEHESEEN
™

AEBERFEEA

The Group
rEE

2014 2013
—E-MmOFE —T—=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Within 1 year —FLAR 2,169 4,789
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUBEBEERFUARN - 2,149
2,169 6,938

At 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company had no

operating lease commitments.

RZE—NEFER_FT—=F+=A8
=+—H  ARRMELEHERE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)
26. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 26. RERRYE (H)
(CONTINUED)
(b) At 31 December 2014, the Group contracted with b) RZF-—MFE+-—A=+—8"
tenants for the following total future minimum lease ARERMPZBEFI OB RE
receivables: WEHSEEOT :

The Group as lessor AEBERLEA
The Group
EE

2014 2013
—E-mEFE —T—=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TBT THTT
Within 1 year —FLAR 2,755 3,674
After 1 year but within 5 years —EUBEBEERFENAN 27 63
2,782 3,737

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27. EHEBEALRY

TRANSACTIONS
a) Key management personnel remuneration a) LEEA HM 4

FEBTEERAEHE (B
RHESEE 2 XN ARAE
ERERPMZIOMKEZET
BEeHMALHE) T -

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company's
directors as disclosed in note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows:

2014 2013

—E-UFE —T—=%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FiET FAT

Short-term employee benefits KHE B A 16,476 17,383
Post-employment benefits BEEg A2 92 110
Termination benefits HIEERER - 1,600
Equity compensation benefits [ TR & A - 8,162
16,568 27,255
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

b)

27. HERIEA LA 5 (4)

Financing arrangements b)  EAEERHE
As at
31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2014 2013
—E2E-mE —T=F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET
Amount due from a fellow subsidiary f&W—FE R XM E Qa8 701 682

This represents the amount advanced to Hong Fok
Land Investment Limited, a subsidiary of Hong Fok
Land International Limited (“HFL"), a fellow subsidiary
of the Company. The outstanding balance with this
fellow subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and has
no fixed repayment terms. The amount due from
the fellow subsidiary is included in “Trade and other
receivable” (note 18). At 31 December 2014 and 2013,
no provision for bad or doubtful debts have been made
in respect of this amount due. The maximum amount
outstanding during the year was approximately
HK$701,000 (2013: HK$704,000).

ZRIEREBEMERERR
REN(ARRB2REZWE R T
Hong Fok Land International
Limited (THFL]) Z M@ &)
2R ZRRMBRATZ AR
BRERTDEERR - TR R
EETEER - BIRE RN E
REIZFBENFHATES RE
b EUBRIE | (FfzE18) - M=
T-MFER_FT—=F+_A
=t+—H #HESRZEINHAX
BEHREREE - AFEX
BEZHEALFERA701,000
BT (ZZT—=% : 704,000 %
TT) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —PY4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27, HEBHEA LY (4)

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
o) JUMBBIEEA LS

) Other related party transactions

2014 2013
—E-OFE —T=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FiET FAT
Management fee income from BRI B HFL
a subsidiary of HFL for share of —FEIffY B A B 2
administrative expenses (Note) BEEBUWA (FizE) 2,510 2,737
Building management fee paid to RSB FTREERHEHE BN
a subsidiary of HFL for building ME PRI T EIRIRTE
management services rendered on M fF HFL — &M B A F]
completed properties held for sale  EFERE
owned by the Group 270 235
In the opinion of the directors, the above transactions BEERA LA ST —RE
were conducted in the ordinary course of business and BEEPRIZINEFHEERE
on terms matually agreed by both parties. ZIEREE ©
Note The management fee income is determined based on PEE : BEBRATIHFTHNE LT R
negotiation between both parties having regard to the cost of RIS A G EEERETE -

services on a quarterly basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

28. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Note 25 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to valuation of financial instruments.

Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

a)

b)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives, after
taking into account the estimated residual value. The
Group reviews annually the useful life of an asset and
its residual value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment
as at 31 December 2014 was HK$945,000 (2013:
HK$1,118,000).

Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
the estimated selling price less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories
based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the management
performs an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of each reporting period and assesses
the need for write down of inventories.

The carrying amount of inventories as at 31 December
2014 was HK$248,362,000 (2013: HK$250,161,000).

28. HKAEHY BRI B

Pt A2 K 2 2R

Mizt2s& 5B @
K H R

BTAMBEZER
2 AR ZEH o HAd 5T

EFERZZEFERRET :

a)

b)

IreE

ME - BE MR BN E R R

BRZEFTAIAFHNEREE

e - RNEESFRIAMEZA
RERREFBRE (W) - {8

EHFHHIRERES  RRHAM

ZHERXATHE -

Y- BEMEHER —
¢+_H:+faz/ﬁ\§ﬁ@ﬁ
945,000 (= & — = F:

1,118,000 7T) °

FFEAYE
FERRBERR KA RER
FEBIEETIR - BHRFET
R EERETHE 25
VEREEE - BEERRTE
ZEEFEIBZRESOCER
EBRREANTREE o &
EEEAXTI#E%,H}%X%#IEE%

ETEFERE - YAEWRFE
ZHRE-
FER-_FT-—NOF+-_A=+—

m

ZEEE1E7%248362000,%75
T — = % : 250,161,000

—~

) o

=l
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU TTtHE)

28. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

¢

d)

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts

Allowance for impairment of doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the management when assessing the
credit worthiness and past collection history of each
individual customer. Any increase or decrease in the
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts would
affect profit or loss in future years.

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables
as at 31 December 2014 was HK$2,431,000 (2013:
HK$16,389,000).

Current taxation and deferred taxation

Determining income tax provisions involves
judgement on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The management evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions are set
up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation. Deferred tax assets are
recognised for tax losses not yet used and temporary
deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets
can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilized, the
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional
deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes
probable that future taxable profits will allow the

deferred tax asset to be recovered.

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2014, no
provisions for current tax and deferred tax were made
(2013: HK$Nil).
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28. WK At ORI i (480

AR ASTHE R PR 3R 2 1 AU ()

)

d

IR i 1 15 1
RFREREDRIEEEY Rk
D2 E B R E M Z 5
EEITAEE ARG - BIEENFT
EELEARF ZEEEELS
EWR RS R A H BRI -
R E R 2 TGRS &
ARRFE 248 -

B REMEKEENR - —

F+ZA=+—RHZEEEA
2,431,000 (=T — = F:

16,389,000/ L) °

Bl B 5 R A 4 B I
EMEHREHIRERALRZ S
RIS BIE N HIE - BIZERY
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29.

30.

Notes to the Financial Statements %53 3 b

For the year ended 31 December 2014 # % & —Y4F+ —H =+—H IF /¥

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

In previous years, a subsidiary of the Group sold a property
to a buyer. The buyer alleged that the subsidiary made
certain representations in selling of the property. The buyer
filed a claim with the High Court in Hong Kong claiming
the repayment of consideration of approximately HK$9.8
million paid in purchasing the property and rescission of
the contract together with related costs, interests and
damages. The subsidiary filed a defense against the claim.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the buyer filed a
mediation notice with the High Court attempting to resolve
the claim through mediation but no compromise was
reached by the both parties in the mediation meeting. The
directors of the Company are of the view that the buyer’s
claim is based on unreasonable and invalid grounds and
therefore unfounded. In view of the inherent uncertainties
of the legal proceedings, the outcome of which cannot be
estimated reliably at this stage, the directors of the Company
considered that no specific provision should be made in the
financial statements.

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2014, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Company to
be Hong Fok Corporation (Cayman) Limited, which was
incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability, and
Hong Fok Corporation Limited, which was incorporated in
the Republic of Singapore with limited liability and is listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited,
respectively. The immediate parent company does not
produce financial statements available for public use while
the ultimate controlling party produces financial statements
under Singapore Financial Reporting Standards for public

use.

29.

30.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) — (LAi#ICE]H)

AR A

BAFE  AEE-HMRBAGLE
—EMETER - BEFBHEWNBAR
REEMERELETER - EHA
EREARSER  BEXEEBEZD
¥ Fr 11 499,800,000 L2 KRB &
BUB &M AR A - FB KI8
KeZMBRAIBREZHEEEH
RoBEZZTZ-NOF+=-A=1+—8H
IEFE  BEFmaS iR M
HM-BBBRPESABERER  ER
mEEELETORENEZN - AR
REERREFHRNDERTEER
BYEBEERLEESEERE - ERNE
BFRDZARETETEN  FRAERR
ABEBREEF £TEAN  ARAIEER
R ER I SRR R VE L BB -

VL B B 2P Uy

R-_ZE—NE+-_A=+—HB &=
REARNAZEET R R&EKE
#lH 2 RlIAHong Fok Corporation
(Cayman) Limited(RHESHS=
MLz BR2RXF) MHong Fok
Corporation Limited (FAFT N L FE
MW AR INEBEZSAR
REEMZBERAR)  c EESARI
BEATERRAEQIRER - MK
PR ) 7 B AR B T o0 B S R A 22 R
BB BREHARER o
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31. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2014

Up to the date of issuance of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued several amendments and standards
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2014 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

31.

RBEE_F-WETZH
= HORAE R AR R R
LY EA TIRE R Ty
L) 32

BEHEUHRR2TEAY  BE
G AERMBEANARBE_F
—HET A=+ —RIEFEENMZ
E5T MR (B RRE AT AT ERIRR I
EMBEMRPEN) - RGHANEE A
B2 ERT R &R o

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BBz 2263

Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle
HEBVBME LR BT BBV BHEGEA —E—FFE —E——FFAH
FEH#E

Amendments to HKFRSs, Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle
HEBUBREERNZER] BB EHGER —E——FF2 —F—=FFH
FE#E

Amendments to HKFRS, Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
HEBVBME LR AER] - BBV BREGER —FE——FF
ZEF R FEXE

HKFRS 14, Regulatory deferral accounts
EBMBmEERE 145 - BEERLERR

Amendments to HKAS 19, Defined benefit plan: Employee contributions
HEBGTERBNE R AEE] - THEETIFE - lESHX

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
BAEMBHRELERFE IR  2HTA

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

R BMELRE 155 - KBS AMM S

Amendments to HKFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations
HEBVBWMELERNE 1R IER] - WERALER LS R

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of
depreciation and amortisation

HEBGTHERE 165 REBGTERIE 3858 2 185]
BIBITE RIS EZITE

Amendments to HKAS 1, Disclosure initiative
HEBQTEAE 1SR 2IEE] - HEE

126 Winfoong International Limited 4% ' B B R A 7

ZEFTHEEN

1 July 2014
—E-NF+EHA—H
1 July 2014
—E—mF+HA—H

1 January 2016

—E-RF—H—H

1 January 2016

—E-RF—HA—H

1 July 2014

—E-mFLH—H

1 January 2018

—E-N\F—H—H

1 January 2017

—E—+F—HA—H

—z

=

=

1 January 2016

—~"F—H—H
1 January 2016

—%—F—A—F

1 January 2016

—E-RF—H—H
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31. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 3. RERE_-F-WEF A

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT
YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2014 (CONTINUED)

Zob— HOR AR B T N R
LY A TIRE R ) Tt =i
[ RE L ()

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RUT BHsi 2 &R
ZETHEEN

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28,
Investment entities: Applying the consolidation exception

1 January 2016

HEBHMBREERIE 105 - BEMBREERIE 1257 BB G ERF 2858 —ET-RF-A—H

ZIER]  REERE : B AKRAIDISMEN

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, Agriculture: Bearer plants

1 January 2016

BEBEFEUNF 16 R RBBGTLEAE 4R ER] - £% - BREY —ZT—RF—-A—H

Amendments to HKAS 27, Equity method in separate financial statements

HEB G EANF 27 R 2IER] - B HFHAZ a4

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 28, Sale or contribution of assets

between an investor and its associate or joint venture

UEBMBEWEERE 1058 BB IEREERE 2858 2 &

REZFHAB LN FIE SR FHEEL EXTE

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group's results of operations and
financial position.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, “Accounts and
Audit”, of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) come into operation from the Company’s first
financial year commencing after 3 March 2014 (i.e. the
Company's financial year which began on 1 January 2015) in
accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of the expected
impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on
the consolidated financial statements in the period of
initial application of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only
affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statement.

1 January 2016
—E—R¥—H—H

1 January 2016

~T—x%F—A-H

7% BB E A IR AR E T
RS IET I Y P a7
2.ZHAAL AEERAEML
MBS RER T AT SR Y A EE
BELERABRRELEAYE -

UEoh - FREB R ARG (F6221K) F9
o [8RB REF ] 2R EREZ GO
EIBHEARRANZE—NF=A=
Az AR EEYBFE(BIAQFR
ZE-AF—A—HRBRZHBREE)
FIRE - AEBEIEFTERYIAER
F9H 5 BRfE & RGP 2 B B ¥4 & Bt
BHEAkNEHREE - ZEMNAL K
EERRTEUTERNRBEZERE
AU EHREZ 2 NEARIEE -
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Group Properties 45 )¢

Particulars of the Group's major properties held for sale as at 31 REER-ZZE—=F+=-A=1+—HFFED
December 2013 are as follows: EZEEMEFBLOT

Percentage

Gross floor area interest attributable

HIREMEE to the Group
Location Existing Use sq. m. EEE LR
2 RIE AR FHK Batt
30 units of THE ICON, 38 Conduit Road, Residential 1,953 100%
Mid-levels, Hong Kong
BEAFILTEBEISH F=

THE ICONHY301E B iz
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